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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007

(Time Noted – 7:01 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be asked to state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board may then ask questions of the applicant. The public would then be invited to make comments or ask questions. After all the public hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will try to render a decision this evening; however, we have up to 62 days to make a decision. And, I would ask that if you have a cell phone if you would please turn it off, so that we don’t have any interruptions. Thank you.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

ROBERT KUNKEL

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 

FEDELE HOLDINGS, LLC


DIX AVENUE, NBGH







(73-15-1.22) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback and rear yard setback to build a 1-Family residence with garage and rear deck.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening is Fedele Holdings, LLC, on Dix Avenue.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Pfau: Good evening, my name is Joe Pfau, the piece of property that we are here for lies on the corner of Taft Avenue and Dix Avenue in an R-3 Zoning District. The existing lot in our proposal is to construct a single family dwelling on it. The size of that dwelling is 42 feet. The lot is an R-3 Zone, as I mentioned, it meets all the bulk requirements for lot size including the minimum lot depth is 100 ft in that Zone, however, because the minimum front yard and rear yard in that Zone are 40 foot, that’s both the front and rear yard that only leaves the lot 20 foot of building envelop on the R-3 (inaudible) and as such we are asking for …

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; could you take the mic from the stand, it goes directly into the recorder. I’m sorry. Thank you.

Mr. Pfau: As I was saying there’s a 20 foot deep building envelop based on the 100 foot lot depth and because our building is proposed to be 28 foot deep we are seeking an 8 foot relief for the building. We also are proposing a 12-foot wooden deck off the back. So, in total we are asking for a relief of rear yard from 40 ft to 32 ft for the building and from 40 ft to 20 ft for the proposed deck. As I said, this lot otherwise meets all the Zoning requirements. It is in the water and sewer district, we do have a verbal signoff from the Town Engineer with that regard. We also have a preliminary driveway entrance approval from the Highway Department as well. The lot has been completely surveyed and engineered to show that it works and just very quickly I’ll just go through the reasons that we believe that we’re entitled to this variance. Coming right out of your application, it will not produce an undesirable change in character to the neighborhood or detriment to near by properties because the dwelling that we are proposing is roughly the same size and in character with the dwellings in the adjacent neighborhood. And also, which I also submitted as part of the package is a neighborhood plan and what I did on this particular map for both the Board and the Public is I highlighted in pink, these are all existing lots. Our lot is right here on the corner, these are all existing lots in the R-3 Zone with existing dwellings on them that have lot depths of roughly 100 foot. I can’t confirm whether or not they’re deficient in front yard or rear yard but they’re certainly deficient in one of those because of the existing depth of those lots. So, as you can see, this actually goes further down in the same respect. We believe our house is about roughly the same size and we also with regards to lot depth, which is really our only issue we’re in line with much of the neighborhood. 

Chairperson Cardone: Could I ask a question?

Mr. Pfau: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: When was this lot created?

Mr. Pfau: In 1921.

Chairperson Cardone: In 1921, it was separated from the lot in back of it? Was that when it was done?

Mr. Pfau: No, the lot in back of, these lots over here were part of a separate filed map and these two lots were not part of that. They were created prior to this other subdivision, which you see down to the lower corner. This was it’s own filed map, I forget the name of that filed map, but these two particular tax lots were cut out prior to that and were not part of that filed map. 

Ms. Drake: I’d like to ask, when did the owner purchase the lot?

Mr. Pfau: In, I believe, August, of this year (2006).

Ms. Eaton: Is this house being built for speculation or is it being built by an owner of the property to live there?

Mr. Pfau: Well, honestly, I am hoping to live in this house. It’s being built, hopefully, by S & E Construction and I have a business in Goshen and that’s what the hope is.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you. 

Ms. Drake: You don’t show on your plan how far the deck or the back of the other house is to know how the distance between the two houses will be. Is there an existing house right behind it? 

Mr. Pfau: Well, the existing house actually sits more behind lot 7315 1.21, which is this lot if you take a look and see on the neighborhood where that house is located. So, the rear of the parcel adjacent to us really sits behind that house. Our backyard sits to the rear of their backyard and they also have a fence running along this property line, along this back, which is shown on our site plan. And, just very quickly to go through the rest of this application, we really, there’s no place to add property without taking away from an adjacent parcel. There’s no large parcels in the area and we also, I picked out a house at the minimum depth as far as 28 foot I felt was reasonable. Any narrower than that really does not lay out for a good house. Again, the variance is not substantial because it does meet all other bulk requirements in that Zone, only the rear yard and as I said earlier, it’s much in line with many of the existing houses in the neighborhood already. No physical and environmental impacts to the district, as I said it’s in the water and sewer district. There’s no wetlands on site. We do have our driveway entrance approval and the final one is, the hardship has not been self-created because and my answer to that, in the application, was an existing tax lot that was created in 1921.

Chairperson Cardone: And, the size of the deck would be?

Mr. Pfau: It is a 12-foot deck. In you deliberations, the deck is something I would really like, it would work well with the house but at the same time if it would be something that the Board would be completely against we would certainly agree to just the building itself.

Ms. Drake: There’s also power lines right adjacent to that lot, isn’t there?

Mr. Pfau: Yes, the power lines run actually, you can see a couple of poles, they run this direction, right through here adjacent to the property.

Ms. Drake: And, there’s no easement on your property?

Mr. Pfau: None at all, no, it’s on a separate tax, it’s actually on the Taft Company parcel.

Mr. Hughes: You’re diagram indicates a 4 Bedroom house?

Mr. Pfau: A 4 Bedroom dwelling maximum, yes.

Mr. Hughes: Where do you plan on parking the cars?

Mr. Pfau: Well, honestly, it’s a typical bi-level.

Mr. Hughes: You’re not going to park them in the house?

Mr. Pfau: No, we have a garage under on the side.

Mr. Hughes: One?

Mr. Pfau: No, it’s a two-car garage.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Pfau: I don’t anticipate there being more than two cars. Certainly, if I was there, there would only be one car. And, also the length of this driveway is substantial especially compared to the rest of the neighborhood. There’s a large right of way, right in this area that actually is owned by the Town. So, the house actually is going to sit back further even though there’s a 40 foot setback by the actual property line. The setback from the road itself is going to be substantially larger.

Mr. Hughes: Just so you and the rest of the Public know, all the Members of the Board go out to the site and check the adjacent properties and everything going on in the neighborhood. So, we’ve all been out there to witness that.

Mr. Pfau: Good.

Mr. Hughes: It seemed kind of odd where the road came and all that but I didn’t realize there was that other chunk in there.

Mr. Pfau: Yeah, I believe that originally that the road used to go straight. I think that’s why, then they turned the road and straightened it but they never changed the property lines. That’s my belief. 

Mr. Hughes: And, by rights, you have a lot because it was cut off when it was but in R-3 you’re supposed to have 12,500 sq ft. You don’t there.

Mr. Pfau: That’s correct, but there’s a Section of the Code, which refers to existing lots, and that Section of the Code, there’s no minimum lot size required. And, that’s the Section of the Code that I am referencing on my site plan. 

Mr. Manley: Mr. Canfield, does the Building Department have anything that they wish to add with regard to this applicant? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, with respect to that last comment, the applicant’s representative is correct. 185-18 in the Code does make reference to existing lots of record, which does exempt area. So, in relation to Mr. Hughes’ question the lot size is applicable to 185-18 as it is. One thing that we did pick up though is that with the building plans, although it’s shown on the site plan, the building plans that were submitted to our Department depict a front porch on it which does exceed the building envelop so that’s why we also on our referral and disapproval sheet to the Zoning Board put an area variance required for the front yard as well. It’s not shown on the site plan, but the building plans do show a front porch, which I don’t remember there 10 or 12 feet...

Mr. Mattina: 5 x 12 covered porch … 

Mr. Canfield: 5 x 12 covered porch on the front, which does apply. Granted there is that gored of property that is owned by the Town of Newburgh but the building envelope still is depicted on the plan and that porch does exceed the building envelope, so …

Chairperson Cardone: Requiring a 5-foot variance for the front yard?

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: That back porch as well, you’re still not in good position with that in that zone and even if you took that back deck off you’re still infringing aren’t you?

Mr. Pfau: Yes, we would need an 8-foot variance (inaudible) 32-foot requirement.

Mr. Hughes: I just wanted to clarify that.

Ms. Gennarelli: I am sorry, you have to take the mic, I am sorry. Anybody that’s speaking will please use the mic, it’s going into the machine, thank you.

Mr. Pfau: Yes, without the rear deck there would be an 8-yard (foot) deficiency. We are looking for a 32-foot rear yard.

Mr. Hughes: So, the whole back of the house is 8 foot infringing outside the (inaudible)

Mr. Pfau: That’s correct.

Mr. McKelvey: It’s not 8 yards, it’s 8 feet.

Mr. Pfau: 8 feet.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board. Any questions or comments from the public? If so, please stand, take the microphone and state your name and address. They’re being none I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you. 

          






(Time Noted – 7:14PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 11:15 PM)

FEDELE HOLDINGS, LLC


DIX AVENUE, NBGH







(73-15-1.22) R-3 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application of Fedele Holdings at Dix Avenue seeking an area variance for the front yard setback and rear yard setback to build a 1-Family house with a garage and a rear deck. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I think we’ve wrung this out pretty good. You’re the applicant there and you intend to live in that place? With that back deal there you are still going to be out of compliance even if you don’t have a deck you’re still infringing like 8 feet, would you consider not putting that deck back there?  

Mr. Pfau: I prefer to, but if it’s a cause for denial…

Mr. Hughes: Well, it’s not a bargaining chip, so to speak but it is a consideration and your cooperation, it’s a very small lot to begin with and if I could maybe suggest to you, maybe you could negotiate with the Town and annex that part out in front of you to the property later on, might give you some more room.

Chairperson Cardone: I think being realistic, people build decks now and if the deck isn’t there now, it might be there in a couple of years and they would be back before us again to get a variance for the deck. I personally, just my own opinion, would prefer to handle it all tonight.

Mr. Pfau: But, if he is not the guy who that’s going to live in it eventually, there may be somebody else that would come back. I don’t know.

Ms. Eaton: Whoever lives there will probably come back.

Mr. McKelvey: The all do.

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s my feeling.

Mr. McKelvey: And, none of the neighbors came out.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, there was no opposition in the neighborhood.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Manley: I’ll make a motion that the applicant be granted approval for this particular variance as applied for.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call vote.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: 

Chairperson Cardone: I have to hold one minute before I vote. Yes?

Mr. Canfield: If I may?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: Request a condition, the applicant (inaudible) because of the closeness of the building envelope opposed to the building area that the architect stake out the foundation. What that will do for us is assure that the foundation gets in that very close footprint that’s proposed.

Mr. Pfau: Is that for the Building Department?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: And, that will help so they don’t have to come back to us later when it’s not built (inaudible).

Mr. Canfield: (inaudible) we can assure that the foundation is where it belongs.

Mr. Manley: I’ll amend my motion to reflect Mr. Canfield’s request.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll re-second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. 

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 11:18 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:15 PM)

HARRIET MOLIN – PATRICK PAGE


1613 ROUTE 300, NBGH

PROPERTIES, LLC-STORAGE STOP II  


(34-2-26.211 & 57) IB

Applicant is seeking area variances for the minimum required front yard setback and maximum building height for self-storage facilities.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Harriet Molin-Patrick Page Properties, LLC, Storage Stop II, 1613 Route 300.

Ms. Gennarelli: There was a problem with the mailings. The application had the wrong address on it, therefore the Notices went out with the wrong address. It’s going to be corrected for next month, I believe.

Chairperson Cardone: We will hear the applicant this evening, however, we will have to hold it open until next month so that it can be Re-Noticed and re-published in the paper.

Mr. Manley: I have just one question, if the people that didn’t get the Notices show up next month, for their benefit, Mr. Raab will have to make his presentation all over again? 

Chairperson Cardone: That is correct. That is correct. But, there could be people here tonight who …

Mr. Manley: … did get the notice.

Chairperson Cardone: … did get the notice.

Mr. Raab: I think everybody got the notice …

Chairperson Cardone: They got the notice, the issue wasn’t them getting the notice, it was the address.

Mr. Raab: The wrong address.

Mr. McKelvey: It got published in the paper wrong then too, right?

Mr. Raab: Yes, the wrong address was published in the paper. But, I re-notified everybody that was on the list, either by hand or by Fed-ex or by certified mail and they know where the correct address is now. So, again I have no problem holding over, but I do want to make a presentation tonight because we would like to re-submit to the Planning Board because by the time we get back on, the February meeting will already pass, so.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Raab: Thanks. This is a building that has a very long history in the Town of Newburgh. It was built by Gus Dukakis in the early 70’s. It was first occupied by Sunshine Biscuit. It was then purchased from Mr. Dukakis by Wextel, Haber and Smith. Wextel being the principal in Insul-pane and it was Insul-panes place of business for approximately 8 years. After Insul-pane moved out, they sold to the predecessor to Harriet Molin, I believe it was Harriet’s husband, and, in moved R & R Woodworking. Over that period of time the building grew from a concrete block building which was about a third of the size it is now to two other additions, one which brought the building out to where Little Brook Lane is right now and one added onto the back to square off the building for R & R Woodworking. What had happened in the meantime is, is that when the waterline went in Little Brook Lane the Planning Board requested that the 50 foot right of way that was between Cornwall Builders and the Harriet Molin property become a private road. When it became a private road that’s when the problem became that the 40-foot setback was deficient to the road. What’s happened here also is is that we’re looking for indoor storage. O.K.? The Zoning does not cover indoor storage per se. It does cover self-storage but the type of self-storage that’s outdoor accessibility, overhead doors, long buildings, that type of, and 15 foot high. What we plan to do here is what Mr. Page did up in Poughkeepsie is to revamp this building and it’s all interior doors, card access, there’ll be a drive through, where you drive through the building. You can park inside then drive back out, completely with the doors closed; do all your unloading and that type of thing inside. So, the height of the building, which already exists, the front yards already exist and we’re looking for a variance for the two front yards. A 4 foot for the front yard on Plattekill Turnpike and I believe, it’s a 35-foot or a 25-foot variance on the side yard to Little Brook Lane. And also the building height because again the self-storage section of the Zoning Law only applies to 1-story, 15 foot high self-storage buildings. And, again this is going to be completely re-vamped. The existing exterior will be completely renovated with these aluminum (copping) panels that go all the way and Styrofoam faced fit panels that are all up and down the building in these sections as you see it. It’ll be a gray and blue color code on the building and all four sides will be face lifted. So, that’s really the sum and substance of why we’re here, that it’s an existing building, we’re not changing anything, we’re not adding to the exterior of the building at all. One of the variances that we are requesting would be needed no matter what you use the building for. You can change the use of this building from woodworking; you’d have to come to this Board for at least the Little Brook Lane setback, because it is a private road. The Zoning Code doesn’t stipulate between private roads and Town roads, the setback is what the setback is and we’ve been before the Planning Board, there’s been, they’re pretty much acceptable to what we’re doing and they sent us here for these variances. And, that’s pretty much it.

Chairperson Cardone: We also have the report from the Orange County Department of Planning and their comment: 


In this case, the proposed action of an indoor self-storage conversion of an existing structure will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhoods, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. We recommend the building should be screened with vegetation.

Mr. Raab: Which we have no problem with, we have a landscaping plan just about 75% done for this now, so, a lot of shrubs, a lot of trees.

Mr. McKelvey: I think the Planning Board would …

Mr. Raab: There’s like a price limit on what you got to do, you got to put $15,000 worth of landscaping in, no matter what, so.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. Mr. Canfield or Mr. Mattina, do you have anything to add?

Mr. Raab: I just ask the Board, I know the Board can’t act on this, this month, but the Board doesn’t have a problem with me re-submitting to the Planning Board, prior to me getting the variance?

Chairperson Cardone: No, I could read into the record from Garling Associates, the Section on Zoning, I think the Board Members have had a chance to see it, but I would just remind them that – 

Based on the ZBA procedures in a case such as this we believe front setback area variances are require for Route 300 a four-foot variance and Little Brook Lane a 36-foot variance and a building height variance of 15.8 feet are required. Even if this use was considered a warehouse, a front yard variance would still be required for Little Brook Lane. We agree that the regulations that were prepared for a typical outdoor, garage style self-storage facility. Four or five years ago we prepared regulations for an indoor facility for the City of Port Jervis. This was also a conversion and we did a good deal of research on this type of facility. This facility will have adequate parking and we foresee no major problems. 

Mr. Hughes: They have some issues about signage and the driveway and the parking areas for traffic load and such. What do you have up your sleeve for signs? 

Mr. Raab: Really, do you see the signs? They’re going to be right on the building.

Mr. Hughes: They’ll be part of the building itself?

Mr. Raab: They’ll be part of the building itself. We won’t exceed, we won’t need a variance for the signage. The flow, as you know they did have a question about how it’ll flow, the parking will be up in here, the major part of the parking. It’ll be one-way all the way through and then everybody will exit Little Brook Lane that goes into these other driveways. The only people that will go back out onto Route 300 this way are people that are parking in this front parking lot. 

Mr. McKelvey: Just for the record then, there is going to be no pylon sign up front.

Mr. Raab: No pylon sign up front.

Ms. Eaton: Will this be open 24 hours a day?

Mr. Raab: 24 hours a day? (to Mr. Page)

Mr. Page: Not usually.

Mr. Raab: No? What are the normal hours, what are the hours of operation with the one in Poughkeepsie?

Mr. Page: 9 to 5, (inaudible) in the building until 9:00 at night.

Mr. Raab: O.K. 

Mr. Page: 7 in the morning, till 9 at night.

Mr. Raab: 7 in the morning, till 9 at night, for the record that was stated by Patrick Page, the principal of Patrick Page Properties and also Storage Stop.

Mr. McKelvey: We can include that into the variance, it’s up to you. 

Mr. Raab: O.K. Oh no, I don’t have a problem with that.

Mr. McKelvey: It’s O.K. all right with you? (to Mr. Page)

Mr. Page: Yes.

Mr. Raab: It’s better for him; it keeps him the heck out of there.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: Just one comment with respect to Mr. Hughes’ statement on the signage.

The Board may want to keep in mind that because this is deemed a corner lot, the signage allocated for this property is the linear footage of both roads. So, they appear what they have proposed have adequate frontage for signage.

Mr. Hughes: Two front yards?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Raab: If we feel a necessity for signage, we’ll make that presentation next month when we comeback. I’ll discuss it with Mr. Page, but we hadn’t discussed a freestanding sign up until now.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments? This will be held open until next month.

Mr. Raab: Thank you very much. 








(Time Noted – 7:25PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007


(Time Noted – 7:25 PM)

KEVIN & RITA PETRARCA

  
28 LAURIE LANE, NBGH



(40-4-6.21) R-3 ZONE  

Applicant is seeking area variance for the rear yard setback to erect a larger rear deck.       

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicants Kevin & Rita Petrarca, 28 Laurie Lane.

Mr. Petrarca: How are you doing? I kind of feel a bit at a loss, I didn’t bring any pretty pictures with me. We are just putting a deck on the back of our house.

Chairperson Cardone: We’ve all been there.

Mr. Petrarca: Oh, that’s true.

Chairperson Cardone: I even met you when I was there.

Mr. Petrarca: That’s right.

Mr. McKelvey: We’ve all seen the property.

Chairperson Cardone: Just briefly state what it is that you’re requesting.

Mr. Petrarca: Basically, we want to put a deck. We have a deck on the back of the house and we wanted to make a larger deck. So, we want to get a 20-foot deck in the back and because of the requirements my lot is not straight with the house. It’s kitty corner, so at the closest corner my house is, I am going to wing this, I think it’s 37 feet.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Petrarca: O.K. Thank you. And, so right there I need a variance and there are no houses directly behind me, yet. Eventually there will be, I’m sure.

Mr. McKelvey: The only other question I would have is, would you have considered going the other way?

Chairperson Cardone: Where the septic system is.

Mr. McKelvey: Where the septic system is or is that a problem? 

Mr. Petrarca: Well there’s a, actually that’s the length we picked because I have a septic tank and a pump and I can’t put a cement tube down that.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, I know the septic and the manhole is there.

Mr. Petrarca: And, actually towards where the deck is, is where the tank is, right underneath it and that’s what gave us the end, basically, that’s as far as we can go.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? 

Ms. Gennarelli: May I just say all mailings were in order, on this.

Chairperson Cardone: If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.  








(Time Noted – 7:28 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 11:18 PM)

KEVIN & RITA PETRARCA

  
28 LAURIE LANE, NBGH



(40-4-6.21) R-3 ZONE  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Kevin and Rita Petrarca at 18 Laurie Lane, seeking an area variance for a rear yard setback to erect a larger rear deck. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Mr. McKelvey: I think one of his problems there is the septic system.

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: And, it’s very well identified there with that big manhole cover.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, Hmm.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval?

Ms. Drake: I make a motion we approve this variance as submitted.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 11:20 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007


(Time Noted – 7:29 PM)

JOSEPH PALMERONE-NEWBURGH
NE CORNER RTE 17K & RTE 300, NBGH

  RETAIL DEVELOPERS, LLC

(97-2-34) IB ZONE  

Applicant is seeking area variances for the total signage including a pylon sign.                                                      

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Joseph Palmerone – Newburgh Retail Developers, LLC, NE corner route 17K and Route 300.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings were in order.

Mr. Morrison: Good evening, my name is Rodney Morrison. I am a professional engineer. I represent Land Resource Consultants, engineering and planning firm for the project. I have with me tonight, my partner, Ken Casamento and also two representatives from the development company, Mr. Kevin Dowd and Michael Sileo. The variances that we are seeking appear to be fairly common for our size, magnitude and location. I had created a narrative to go along with the application to discuss the sign variances that we are seeking but in general there are two variances that we are looking for: one if for the total allowable signage for our project and the second if for the positioning of a second freestanding pylon sign for our project. The project, in total, and I am glad to hear earlier that you do go to the site so you’re familiar with the site and surrounding area. It’s at the corner of Route 17K and 300. What is proposed here is a total of 27,300 sq. ft. of new retail development; it is designed to be positioned in four separate buildings rather than say a more traditional development of a single building or a single, as we would say, strip-center. Due to the location of the site, the fact that it’s a corner property on two extremely busy roads we have two entrances proposed for the project. Before I talk any further about that the project clearly has been approved by the Planning Board. It’s gone through a very intense review through the ARB approval and in that process there is a great deal of study about the site signage and where it would be positioned, what, how much is appropriate and so on. The actual signage proposed for the buildings which is in the package that I gave you, we gave you each of the renderings for the buildings, we actually had to pull together in a spreadsheet, if you will, which is why I added my own spreadsheet in here while we were under review at the ARB and consideration of colors, scale and size of signage and the signage itself is spread pretty evenly throughout each of the four buildings. I think on no one face it’s any greater than, I believe, it’s 5%. So, it’s quite moderate even though it’s looks for double what the signage code allows. One interesting fact about that amount of signage is if you were to build a single freestanding building, the amount of signage allowed with the two frontages we have would be, I think, it’s 705 sq ft. If you applied that to a single building that would equal just over one square foot per linear foot of building. When you add up the creation basically of four separate buildings and the additional perimeter of building face we are proposing, in essence, exactly the same as would be allowed in signage per length of building. Even though, because there is more building perimeter it causes us to come request a variance. The same situation applies to the corner property here for our project the concerns for traffic access and visibility as has applied for the Lowes across the street, other neighboring business, the Nissan dealer so on and so forth there are I think four different examples of very similar projects, the Stop & Shop down the road, all of which we investigated as part of the project. Our proposed second pylon sign is to accomplish the same thing that it has been for those projects and that’s to notify people who need to get in, get off of a busy road in an intersection area that carries a tremendous amount of traffic volume to get them in and out of our site to identify the property as safely as possible. Also, the other factor here is again, I have said the buildings there are four separate buildings, it is atypical from a lot of projects but similar to the Lowes project in that once you get inside the actual parking area, inside the center you don’t have one place to park. You have to seek out your actual building or the business you are going to. The summary that we’ve proposed in here, in our spreadsheet, talks about the allowable square footage, which is 705 sq. ft. as I have mentioned, the variance that we are requesting is for 1454 sq. ft. total. And again as I mentioned, if you look at that with respect to an alternative site plan with a single building the amount of signage on the face of the building does not exceed what it would be for the single building itself. I did have an opportunity to, at the time of the application for the Lowes center, be involved that project. So, I do have through our own company files a copy of the variance application that was made then and in their particular case the signage that was allowed was a little over 800 sq. ft., they applied for 2400 sq. ft. It worked out to be four times what the Code would allow. In our case here, we are looking for two times what the Code would allow. So, we thought, early on in our planning that that was appropriate. It met the needs with some negotiation of our national tenants so we proceeded forward through the Architectural Review Board and the Planning Board under that premise. I think that’s it for the moment. Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: Where are you going to place these pylons?

Mr. Morrison: The pylon signs would be located as close to the entrances off of the major roads as possible. We have it positioned 15 feet off of this entrance on Route 300 in this existing driveway going down to the Hotel and the Diner. We also have it positioned 15 feet off the road on our new right in and right out entrance off 17K. We did again go through, we didn’t measure on other peoples’ properties the positions of their signs but as you go up and down 17K and 300 and look at all the new pylon signage ours are proposed to be sitting virtually in the same location. For example, if you go over where the Diner is here, it’s not shown on our presentation map but is shown on our site plan documents, the existing pylon sign it sits at the exact same distance off the street. The other thing about our sign which I think is the first sheet, I think you have it there, it’s a very moderate pylon sign compared to what has been built, it’s 20 feet high, it has pylons on either side for some presence as an example I think it looks fairly similar in size and scale to the signs that are out at the Stop & Shop. 

Mr. Manley: On your plan space 3 through 7 indicates very small amounts of what appears to be square feet for signage on the front elevation. For example, space 5 is only 32.5, but yet, Panero Bread is showing 92 and right elevation is showing 69. My feeling is these stores may be coming back before this Board in the future in order to increase their signage. Does that possibility exist?

Mr. Morrison: We have no intention of coming back for those stores. Honestly, as part of our Architectural Review process there was a great deal of discussion about how much signage to allocate towards those inline spaces and a tenant such as a Panero comes to the table with, and as this Board has experienced in every other application, their own desires for what their signage is. In the case of the Panero Bread, it occupies the end cap of the building, it has defined awnings and their signage is going to take up more space for us. In our case, our discussions had been that the national tenants, you know the signage that we have proposed as is calculated here we left a certain amount for those spread out over those inline spaces, so, we don’t anticipate coming back. We anticipate having whoever takes those spaces live by those rules. I think if you will.

Mr. McKelvey: They are one of the bigger buildings there.

Mr. Morrison: Yes, they are, Panero is one of the bigger buildings. I actually have, Ken is pointing out here that we have a rendering with us tonight of those spaces. The inline spaces with the unnamed tenants, let’s say. The Panero Bread, national tenant here, Verizon here, the spaces that are allocated while the square footage it does seem small it looks appropriate. And, this is one of the exercises the Planning Board made us go through. It looks appropriate in terms of size for that inline space. So, in our position is that it is appropriately scaled. 

Mr. Casamento: One of the other things that we did with the Planning Board when we talked is the, my name is Ken Casamento, Partner of the LRC Group, is any of the signs, we talked about square footage to fit in the box and that’s what we went over with the Planning Board. The square footage as shown is this rectangular area in which the sign, they can fit their sign to fit. Like the Verizon store fits within that sign area, so the idea was like you said not to come back, that so whoever would would conform to fit inside that area.

Ms. Eaton: Suppose another national chain wanted to come in and they have an appropriate sign that they want to use throughout the number of stores they have, they all have their logos and such to conform to what they want to have to advertise their business … what happens in a case like that?

Mr. Morrison: Well I believe that by our application through this Board, that we have made commitments to the amount of signage that’s available here, through our ARB approval and the details of that which Ken had to work through in very great detail with the Planning Board consultants. There are commitments with the colors that are allowed. So, that tenant would need to conform. If that tenant didn’t conform then they could potentially come back and seek an additional variance. I am not a lawyer but I think procedurally that’s pretty difficult. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Mr. Canfield? Would you hand him the mic, please?

Mr. Canfield: Thank you. With respect to Mrs. Eaton’s comments, the Planning Board and the Code Compliance Department have established a protocol with respect to reviewing signage as it pertains to national accepted chains, the Planning Board has accepted the protocol to accept their color scheme and at that point, at the planning stages that’s when the size and the whole visual impact of the front of the structure is reviewed. But, to assure you that yes, to eliminate wild color schemes, the Planning Board takes a lot of time and effort in reviewing that. But, there has been a special exception given to national accepted chains.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments? On this application, we have not received the report from the County...

Ms. Gennarelli: It came back; I think I gave it out today.

Mr. McKelvey: Here is mine.

Chairperson Cardone: I’ll read this - in this case the proposed action of a free-standing sign for this specific location will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns.  Any other comments? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

   







(Time Noted – 7:44 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 11:21 PM)

JOSEPH PALMERONE-NEWBURGH
NE CORNER RTE 17K & RTE 300, NBGH

  RETAIL DEVELOPERS, LLC

(97-2-34) IB ZONE  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Joseph Palmerone-Newburgh Retail Developers seeking area variances for total signage including a pylon sign. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I think it’s necessary for him to do business.

Mr. Hughes: And, all the projects of this size and nature that we get go through the same thing and …

Mr. McKelvey: And, they have to identify their stores for people to know which one to go in. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, they got really wrung out on that.

Mr. Manley: I have to say I looked at the architecturals and everything is done very cleanly, very neatly, it really looks like the Planning Board really worked really hard to insure that it was fitting for the Town.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval?

Mr. Hughes: So, moved.

Ms. Drake: I second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

 







Robert Kunkel: Absent

Mr. Casamento/Mr. Morrison: Thank you.               (Time Noted – 11:22 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007


(Time Noted – 7:45 PM)

5182 ROUTE 9W – DEPEW OIL CO.

5182 ROUTE 9W, NBGH

  






(43-5-41.2) B ZONE  

Applicant is seeking area variance to erect a scrolling freestanding sign.                                                      

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is 5182 Route 9W – Depew Oil Co., 5182 Route 9W.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings were in order.

Mr. Lewis: Good evening. Hi, I am Chris Lewis, I run Lewis Sign Company. We are a local sign business here in Orange County. My family has been doing business for 82 years. The Depew brothers came to us to see how we might help them in bringing their current signage that you’ll see that’s in front of their building currently, up to date. You can see why they might want to consider that when you see the pictures. So, they came to us and asked about what we can do to improve the look of their site and help them with a more effective sign program and you’ll see what we’ve proposed which we like to think is a much cleaner, neater, more effective package for them. The Building Department - we meet the size requirements and the set back requirements easily. We’re well under our square footage. But, there is some question whether or not the one part, the lower part here, whether that would constitute a flashing sign or not.

Mr. McKelvey: Which parts that?

Mr. Lewis: There is a reader part to the sign, where you see the time and temperature; these messages could be substituted for that. And, the question is whether that makes the sign a flashing sign or not. And, that’s why we were turned down on our sign permit application. 

Ms. Eaton: You’re just going to advertise Depew Oil, not Lorelei’s Floral? Of course, they’ll remove this.

Mr. Lewis: The permanent part of the sign will say Depew Oil Company, the lower section there that can change, they could use for Lorelei Floral Design when they need to and the other aspects of their business.

Mr. Smiley: (Inaudible)

Mr. Lewis: I have here with me this evening Bill Smiley who is a representative of the company that manufactures that section of the sign, that portion of the sign.

Mr. Hughes: Do the numbers actually go on and off or do you print them up and they stay there?

Mr. Lewis: I am going to let Bill answer that.

Mr. Smiley: My name is William Smiley and I work for a company called Time-O-Matic, I think we have some of our time and temperatures here in Town. We are an 80 year old, U.S. based company. Anyway I work all over the country for various Planning Boards and I have 20 years experience, so, I can answer any questions with regards to the technology, what it is and what it isn’t, government studies …

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a sign like this somewhere in Town?

Mr. Smiley: Yes, at the Newburgh Mall, similar. The difference between that and the Newburgh Mall is strictly just the way the message is configured. That’s configured with what we call a flip disk where the messages, the disk rotates and creates a message. That technology is antiquated; probably I don’t know about 8 years ago and similar to what you see on every major Interstate, it’s called LED which is called light emitting diode where the message comes on and then the new message comes in. It’s changed with a little series of LED’s. What we’ve proposed here as you can certainly see the old sign, I don’t want to make fun of it but it is pretty comical. What you see here is pretty typical of a local business trying to get the word out. Unfortunately, he does it in a way with a manual reader board which most of the communities I work with distaste and I do too also, very ugly and they have a couple of other business within that compound. To answer the maam’s question here, all the advertising that is done on that display would be for basically three aspects; for the business themselves that are there, for any community messages i.e. Amber Alert is very big in this country right now with regards to these I have an article on that what that’s done throughout the United States and any non profits that would come to these folks, local boys club or anything like that that wish to display a message up there, they certainly will take it on a case by case basis. So, those messages we would change periodically throughout the day for the various businesses. So, there would be no off premise advertising on there, I think that’s one of the concerns. The boards themselves are internally illuminated similar to any signage. We are in a commercial district. We actually took a picture of the adjoining property next to it for the turret of the surrounding properties, not that I need to, you all folks went out there and looked at it. It is a commercial area but this is what’s next door. Again,

Chairperson Cardone: I drive by there every day.

Mr. Smiley: Yeah, you can see what happens with technology. You can see what happens with the reader board that I just passed out for you, all the letters fall off and the messages look terrible. And, when I speak to Boards, I ask Board Members quite often is, how many Board Members use a typewriter? And, I don’t mean it to be fresh, I just mean it to say that technology is here to stay, it’s been here for a long time, it’s nothing to be afraid of. 

Ms. Eaton: I use a typewriter, occasionally.

Mr. Smiley: But, technology is … do you use a computer to also? 

Ms. Eaton: Yes.

Mr. Smiley: Technology is here to stay and its something we need not be afraid of. The United States Government has studied; the thing that I hear from Boards most often in my travels is safety. Will people be distracted while their driving down the road? That seems to be the biggest question that I hear. The United States, the Federal Highway Association has done their study, I have a copy of it. I could submit it for the record. I’ll certainly pass that out to the Board. They have done their study on whether or not electronic signage does indeed constitute any type of traffic hazard and that study came back negative. It’s been done over and over again and that’s when the Federal Highway Association enacted them all over. The other word in the Code has to deal with the word flashing, which is kind of a vague word and gets interpreted in different ways. The Highway Beautification Act was amended back in 1964, I believe, but I have the exact records here to not deem electronic reader boards as we call them to be flashing signs, to fit in the category as flashing signs. So, I mean that’s all information that I can pass out to the Board. But, basically what the client has tried to do here is come up with something tasteful and I believe they have done that. But, allow them to advertise various messages out there without ending up with something like that and then allow them to use it for various community businesses.

Mr. McKelvey: The thing I noticed here is the wires hanging on the ground to the signs.

Mr. Smiley: Everything will be underground; it’s going to be all new steel and concrete and Mr. Lewis did mention that we are actually below the allowable square footage that is allowed by the Town. We’re below the allowable square footage and we meet the setback that’s allowed for that property. 

Ms. Eaton: How tall is it?

Mr. Smiley: I don’t know what’s the maximum allowable height. I think it’s probably about 15 feet overall height, is that fair to say? 

Mr. Lewis: It’s that or less.

Mr. Smiley: O.K. That’s about adequate where the reader board portion would be positioned. We’re under the height, under the square footage and obviously I believe we’ve done a great job in trying to clean up the property and add something that works nice for the property.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Manley: The businesses that are there now, is a Florist, yes?

Mr. Smiley: Yes, sir.

Mr. Manley: And, the Oil Company?

Mr. Smiley: Yes, sir.

Ms. Eaton: Is there a Landscaping business there?

Mr. Smiley: Yes. It’s part of the Floral Company.

Mr. Manley: So, there’s three, are there any others that are currently operating?

Mr. Smiley: No.

Mr. Manley: Would the applicant have any problem having a condition associated with that, that those are the only three businesses that would be allowed to advertise? If there was a change of use of the business that new applicant would then have to come before the Zoning Board in order to utilize the flashing part, not the flashing part, but the part of the sign that illuminates different advertisements?

Mr. Smiley: Generally, we wouldn’t have a problem with that. But, generally it’s stipulated in most cases that I present that only businesses that are on that property would be allowed to advertise on that sign.

Mr. Manley: My concern would be if there was an establishment perhaps that the Town wanted to, potentially, regulate the advertisement on the sign if it was a business per se a desirable business to be advertising or inappropriate form of advertising. 

Mr. Smiley: I can understand where you are going. I guess that would have to be for the applicant to take up with the Board, yes. 

Mr. Manley: And, this way the Zoning Board would then have the authority then to grant or not grant if it was a business per se that the Board felt was not appropriate to be advertising.

Mr. Smiley: That’s a legal question. It would be a little bit of a legal problem there, but. That’s fine. We’d stipulate that those three businesses would be the only ones that advertise on that sign. If we could put in for public service also and time and temperature which is a fairly big part of that also, that’s O.K?

Mr. Manley: Is there any problem to limit the advertising to the businesses that you’re giving me the use of the variance to the …

Chairperson Cardone: You are setting a precedent, I think it hard to then say no to another business.

Mr. Manley: But, most businesses, for example the sign variance that was coming before us, the previous one, what I am trying to think of is that, you have a message that can be changed, where a static sign the message can’t be changed. I guess the concern is if …

Chairperson Cardone: I think the concern is that anything that you put on a sign that the message can be changed. I don’t know if you have ever driven down River Road there’s an Oil Company …

Mr. Manley: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: … that has a sign and they have different messages. Each day is something different. It gives the temperature, it also says Happy Birthday to whoever or different messages come on the sign. So, you really could put anything there.

Mr. Lewis: You could put anything there, but it can’t be for businesses that aren’t, services and goods that aren’t sold on that property because then it would fall under a Billboard and then that would constitute getting a Billboard. That’s a whole different league. You can only advertise goods and services that are sold on that property. That’s any sign and I think the … any sign that’s erected on a property can only advertise goods and services that are sold on that property. That’s correct. So, that’s all we would be doing as far as limiting to that maybe a business that goes in there down the road where you may not like that business and you don’t want them to be able to have a changeable message center, I think that may be something, we would be willing to stipulate in the variance that it would be only those.

Ms. Martini: Just have the new applicant come back and reapply. (Inaudible)

Mr. Lewis: Yes.

Ms. Drake: As businesses change in the previous application they’ll take the old business down and put a new sign up, pylon signs also. So, that, we don’t know all the businesses that will be in there that will be advertised on that sign at this point.

Mr. Manley: Right. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, this would be lit 24 hours a day?

Mr. Lewis: No, generally what happens is, with electronic reader boards, there’s a certain period where the traffic is null. It’s like any illuminated sign. I don’t know if in your Ordinance the illuminated signs allowed or to have to shut off at a certain time.

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Lewis: We would abide by what those Laws were. 

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: Thank you. Just to the question early on was, why the applicant is here. Historically we have viewed reader board type signs such as the Newburgh Mall as the applicants’ representative has mentioned, Newburgh Auto Park, those are reader board signs which have come before this Board because we have made the determination that they do fall under flashing signs which are in the prohibited section. Just one comment I’d like to make with respect to Mr. Manley’s comments, an option for the Board to consider as far as restricting to quote ‘undesirable type occupancies’ they may fall under a different known as change in use of the building which would then present a whole different scenario, it’s more than just signage. And, if there is a change of use then of course that would put it in another arena perhaps back to the Planning Board or perhaps this Board again for further review of what’s being put in there. So, in a nutshell what I guess what I’m recommending to the Board that a change of use is somewhat regulated by this Board, or the Planning Board or my Department. So, you would have another crack at it so to speak.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: The fuel tank that’s shown in the picture, is that just for advertising or is that actually in use and needs be relocated? Is that part of their advertising for the fuel business or is it …?

Mr. Lewis: That kind of brings up some of the points that I was bringing up earlier before. Is that, business are desperate, in a way.

Ms. Drake: What I am saying is that tank in use and does that need to go underground?

Mr. Lewis: It was there and it’s part of their advertising, they are advertising tank removal and tanks installed.

Mr. Smiley: So now, they would be able to eliminate all that and that’s one of the benefits of the electronics to eliminate all the clutter. We will remove that, if you want to make it part of that. Does the Board want me to submit the government studies or anything like that for the record?

Chairperson Cardone: No, I don’t think so. Are there any questions or comments from the public? Yes, Mr. Mattina.

Mr. Mattina: Joe Mattina, Code Compliance. You were talking about the design of the signs; can it change intensity and color? Can it go from Depew Oil in white and all of a sudden bright red, with the other occupancy, or is it going to stay one color, one constant? 

Mr. Smiley: The electronic portion, which is the only part, that changes …

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Smiley: O.K. The Depew Oil, which is the yellow portion, is a permanent illuminated sign like you see in every business.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Smiley: The electronic portion, which is the area that’s here, is a color display it does change messages.

Mr. Mattina: So, it’s going to be flashing different colors?

Mr. Smiley: It is not going to be flash.

Mr. Mattina: Well, rotating, changing different colors and different intensities?

Mr. Smiley: Not different intensities, no. It maintains the same amount of intensity; it just changes the message that’s up there.

Mr. Mattina: O.K.

Mr. Smiley: And we depicted the various messages, typical messages that would fit on there that you could say. And they chose a larger one so that you can get what we call a complete messages on screen, so you can get a whole thought in that screen that’s up there.

Mr. Mattina: How long does it take to change a message from to the other? I mean, you’re not going to be driving down the road and all of a sudden see a big red bright light?

Mr. Smiley: Well, you know, at some point during the day somebody is going to see the message change.

Mr. Mattina: What I mean is at night time, so you’re riding down the road 8:00 at night, you have a white message lit up and all of a sudden boom it changes to a red message it’s going to catch your eye because you’re thinking it’s a stop light or you know, you are going from a light color to a contrasting color, how long does that take? Is it instantly?

Mr. Smiley: Yes. The blink of an eye, you won’t even notice. Again, this is put up all over the country I understand the concerns that you address, however, it’s just like anything you see when you’re driving down the road there are certain things that are going on within your peripheral vision that change. Someone opening a car door, someone doing this (motioning), you don’t like take your eyes off the road.

Mr. Mattina: Right. That’s why I want to know how bright and how sudden is it. Is it going to startle anyone going down 9W?

Mr. Smiley: The intensity can be changed, with the ambient light in the area; can be set. Set it so it doesn’t overpower. It needs to be able to be read but it’s no more brighter than a typical lighted sign.

Mr. Mattina: Well now can the shop owner go in there and say it’s not bright enough and he can turn it up?

Mr. Smiley: Not without calling us. Its all code protected.

Mr. Mattina: O.K.

Mr.. Smiley: It doesn’t put out any more lumens or candles, you don’t rate the power watts the same with LEDs than a typically lighted style.

Mr. McKelvey: I think the one sign you refer to at Newburgh Auto Auction when they use it could be detrimental because it was a (inaudible) and the messages kept changing or the lines kept changing, they don’t use it anymore.

Mr. Smiley: Well, one of the things you had talked with Mr. Lewis about is maybe working with the Planning Department to work within that section of the Code to try to come up with, I know worked with last week alone four municipalities (inaudible) Pennsylvania …

Chairperson Cardone: Take the microphone, please. 

Mr. Smiley: … to write a paragraph in there that will address how the message transforms on and off to eliminate some of the things that may come up and arise, you know. So, we can maybe perhaps not see as many of those other things around with the letters falling off. 

Ms. Eaton: That will be the only sign on that property?

Mr. Smiley: Yes, maam. I believe there may be some existing signage on the building that’s there and maybe they’ll clean that up eventually. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments from the public?

Ms. Drake: Do we need to hold this open because we didn’t get anything from Orange County?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, I was just going to say, we do not have a report from Orange County unless one has come in this afternoon.

Ms. Gennarelli: No.

Chairperson Cardone:  So, we could close the public hearing and reserve our decision pending the report from the County. Although, probably it would be best to keep it open, in case anyone wanted to comment on the comments that the County Planning Board made. So, I think we’ll hold this open until next month. 

Mr. Smiley: And, we could have a chance if there was some issue, we could come back and address those concerns if there was any, which I don’t think there will be. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Lewis: Thank you very much.  

(Time Noted – 8:06 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007


(Time Noted – 8:07 PM)

MATT BOYLE-ROYAL POOLS/HERTZ

49 ROUTE 17K, NBGH

   RENTAL CAR (f/k/a The Golf Store)

(100-5-1) IB ZONE  

Applicant is an interpretation of the November 5, 2002 Decision and Resolution and/or seeking an area variance to permit a shed (accessory building) to be built on the vegetative buffer zone. .                                                      

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Matt Boyle – Royal Pool/Hertz Rental Car (f/k/a The Golf Store), 49 Route 17K. 

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings were in order.

Mr. Fitzgerald: Good evening. I am Brendan Fitzgerald from Hudson Valley Engineering representing the applicant Matt Boyle from Royal Pools. This project is located at 49 Route 17K, adjacent to Leary Lane, a little bit west of Hermann Avenue and across from the Target Plaza. It is in an IB District. The original development was completed in 2003 – 2004 to construct the 1500 sq. ft. retail and office building. The building was originally intended to house a retail golf store. The property has been sold and the new tenant and owner is Royal Pools and Spas with a small portion of the building being leased to Hertz Rent A Car. The project received side yard and lot width variance from the ZBA in November of 2002, which were necessitated by a pre-existing, non-conforming lot. The existing lot was 125 ft. in width and contained a residential house in an IB District. Conditions of the resolution for the variances included ingress or egress to the site from Leary Lane, a private road, and the preservation of 100 ft. vegetated buffer along the border of residential uses. These conditions were based upon concerns from residents living on Leary Lane. This was depicted on the approved site plan as an area defined by copying a line parallel 100 ft. from the rear property line that is shown on the plans that you have in front of you. The current owner is proposing to construct a storage shed, which would encroach into the 100 ft. buffer as it was depicted on the originally approved site plan, and, required the removal of one tree. This tree which I have also provided photos of is in poor health and actually requires removal. The application for the amended site plan is currently in front of the Planning Board. The applicant was referred to the ZBA for an interpretation of the buffer condition. The resolution dated November 5, 2002 is unclear with regard to where the 100 ft. should be measured. The resolution states variances be granted on the condition that there be no ingress or egress to the site from Leary Lane and the applicant preserve a 100 ft. vegetative buffer along the border of adjoining residential uses. This parcel is completely contained in an IB District with an undeveloped commercial parcel to the rear and mixed uses along the eastern property line. But, it is completely contained within an IB District. This is what we are asking for an interpretation of. At the time of the variance it was believed that the rear of the parcel was bordered by Residential District but in fact it is bordered by an undeveloped parcel measuring slightly over 100 ft. in width. It is believed that the amended site plan does not violate the intended condition of the granted variance. Also, the amended site plan as it’s shown, we did take a look at the proposed draft buffers and setback amendments that are proposed for the Zoning Code and this proposal would meet that. Just looking at the map, just to show you, everything here is existing, the building and the parking lot. This is the area where he is proposing to put the shed in. There is a grade change there so, in order to put the shed at grade they would construct a small containing wall around 3 sides of the shed and then put dense vegetation around the top of that retaining wall. The tree that I spoke of is actually located basically directly in the middle of the shed. There are pictures, I don’t know if you passed them around that show the condition of that one tree that needs to come down. What’s a little bit unclear is when the condition was put on, when we sought the variances back in 2002 as I said it was depicted by copying the back property line 100 ft. forward. At that particular time, we thought the parcel in the rear was a Residential District but in fact there is another lot contained behind that which is undeveloped which measures about 100 ft wide and 160 ft in depth and has access off of the private road, Leary Lane. There are to the east, the front parcel is a commercial parcel with a couple of buildings and then there are a couple of residential houses that are in the IB District though. They’re not a Residential District. I also brought an aerial, which, let me, just hang this up, just to sort of give you an overview. This aerial I think is from 2004 so it was right after, it’s actually while the building was still under construction. The building is up. This is the building and the parking lot. This is the area where they are proposing to put the shed in. At the time, when we had the public hearing for the side lot setback variances there were several residents that lived back here, on Leary Lane, that came and were worried about this development encroaching all the way to the back of the lot. What you can see is, well it’s hard to see but, I tried to draw a couple of lines in here to sort of represent where the back of this lot is and where there is another commercial lot within the IB District and this lot is a fairly long lot that extends back not quite 400 ft. But right behind it is another lot that’s 100 ft. in width and about 160 ft. in depth and then all of these are again in the IB District. So, it’s just the way they … the resolution was written, I think you have a copy, I submitted a copy with the application. It just says 100 ft. from residential uses. Now these couple of houses are residential uses and portions of it are certainly within 100 ft. from those uses, but at the time when it was approved, as I indicated, it was depicted by that line drawn from the back lot which then makes it about 200 ft. from the residential use behind in Leary Lane. We’re looking for an interpretation of that and whether it really was intended to be the line that was drawn on the plan or was it intended to be 100 ft. from the houses on Leary Lane. And, then also, whether it’s even necessary considering now the new buffering and setback amendments that are happening to the Zoning Code.

Mr. McKelvey: But that one lot that’s vacant behind there, could a house be built on it?

Mr. Fitzgerald: It’s, a house, potentially I guess, I am not sure. That’s maybe a question for the …

Mr. McKelvey: Come before us?

Mr. Canfield: It’s an IB.

Mr.. McKelvey: Yeah, O.K. I wanted to make sure it was in the IB. 

Ms. Eaton: What is the proposed use for this shed?

Mr. Fitzgerald: This is a, they sell swimming pools and they would just be supplies and materials to support their ret …

Ms. Eaton: Chemicals?

Mr. Fitzgerald: Ah, I think there is potential for some pool chemicals but nothing that would be certainly that wouldn’t be allowed to be stored there. Whatever is legally allowed to be stored there.

Mr. McKelvey: Why couldn’t the building be turned around the other way?

Mr. Fitzgerald: The shed?

Mr. McKelvey: The shed.

Mr. Fitzgerald: There are two parking spaces there, even if we turned it, based on the dimensions of the shed, it would still have a slight encroachment into that 100 ft buffer. 

Chairperson Cardone: And the shed would be located where that tree is right now?

Mr. Fitzgerald: Correct. Right, and, it’s sort of in the middle isle of the parking lot so that it could be accessed and that it doesn’t have an impact on any of the existing parking.

Mr. Manley: Does Royal Pools and Spas own the entire building?

Mr. Fitzgerald: They own the entire building, yes. They are actually also the owners of the lot behind it. They recently purchased that lot.

Mr. Manley: I guess the next big question is then if they feel that they have a space issue right now why would they not want to take the whole building instead of renting out part of it? If they didn’t, certainly the solution here would be, use the additional space instead of renting it out, for storage? Yes?  

Mr. Fitzgerald: Yeah, I can’t speak directly for them. I think part of it is his own economics; it’s a small business. It’s a small family owned business and I think that what made it appealing for them or doable for them was the fact that they could rent out some space. Some of it, just also I think is just ease of access and the type of stuff they need to store out there. It’s not an incredibly large shed; it’s 16 x 32’. 

Mr. Manley: I guess what you’re storing there seems to be somewhat vague. That’s just my concern, what you’re going to be storing there.

Mr. Fitzgerald: Yeah, we can, it’s just pool supplies, so I guess I wasn’t asked that question at the Planning Board. I could certainly find that out. I don’t know if that’s of interest to here.

Mr. Manley: Are they concerned at all about potential safety of having, if they are storing some sort of chemicals in there that potentially vandalism or any secure facility like a building as opposed to a storage shed where somebody could actually, I mean, it’s easier to breach that than it is to breach an actual building that’s maybe alarmed?

Mr. Fitzgerald: There’s been no indication of that to me.

Ms. Eaton: Would this be wood construction?

Mr. Fitzgerald: It would be wood construction, we are still going in front of the Planning Board for an architectural review. It’s intended just to match the architecture of the existing building. I’ll be just an architectural asphalt shingle on the roof and some vinyl siding on the side of the shed that matches the existing vinyl siding that’s on the gable ends of the building. There is a lot of additional landscaping also going in, at the request of the Planning Board, along the front of the building to break up that view. Around the display area that they’re proposing around the shed and in anticipation of the new screening regulations some more plantings to go in to shield the parking from 17K.

Mr. Manley: Will there be any utilities in the shed at all? Any electric, any utilities?

Mr. Fitzgerald: No, no electricity.

Chairperson Cardone: If the shed were not being built would you have to take down that tree anyway?

Mr. Fitzgerald: Yes, the tree has to come down. It certainly has potential to fall into parking area. As you can see from the picture it’s definitely on the way out.

Ms. Eaton: Are you sure there is no electricity going into that building?

Mr. Fitzgerald: There is no electricity going into the shed. The only new outdoor utilities that they are proposing, one area light to be installed on the backside of the building to illuminate that back area.

Ms. Eaton: It’s a pretty good-sized shed not to have any electricity in it, even in the daytime. It’s going to have a lot of windows, which are potential hazard for theft protection.

Mr. Fitzgerald: It isn’t proposed to have windows, it’s just has a large double front entry door.

Ms Eaton: A garage door?

Mr. Fitzgerald: No, a double swing door.

Mr. McKelvey: What are their hours of operation?

Mr. Fitzgerald: I couldn’t tell you precisely. I mean it is just …

Mr. McKelvey: It might be more in the summertime than it is this time of year?

Mr. Fitzgerald: Right. You know, now they are even closed a couple of days a week. Basically they just have the spa business in the winter. I couldn’t tell you the exact hours of operation. Is that part of the application? But, they are just normal daytime hours; they may be open in the summertime probably open until about 8. But, I know at this time they are only open till 5.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions?

Mr. Hughes: I have some questions about lot coverage with the displays here, maybe Jerry or Joe could help us out on this. If the same owner has both of these properties, you have all this pool display which is covering a certain percentage of that parking lot, it looks to me by eye that you have like 65 - 70% of this lot covered with some kind of a building footprint and or sheds and displays. I don’t even know if we can rule on this. 

Would the owner be willing to join that into one lot?

Mr. Fitzgerald: We haven’t discussed that yet.

Mr. Hughes: You’ve got an 80% coverage on this lot here. 

Mr. Mattina: That’s what they are allowed, 80%.

Mr. Fitzgerald: You’re allowed 80% coverage but we’re not even …

Mr. Hughes: What about the possibility of turning that shed 90 degrees and putting it up against the pool display so it’s not infringing on that buffer zone.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s what I asked him before.

Mr. Hughes: Well, getting it back into that, what would be the southeast corner, right up tight to the pool display? With the opening of the shed …

Mr. Fitzgerald: The only disadvantage of that it would impact a couple of parking spaces and that’s what we are trying to avoid. If we put it at the end of the isle it wouldn’t have any impact on parking. Where if we put it there the access would have to be through a couple of existing parking spaces. I think that, and we are asking for a better understanding of the actual condition of the buffer because there is, like I said, there is this lot back here which is 100 ft in width and there are some houses over here a couple of which have residential uses so it’s very unclear what the buffer is intended to cover and I mean that’s one of the main, the big questions we have to have answered because if it’s just a matter of whether this encroachment is significant or not, I guess, first let’s decide whether the …

Chairperson Cardone: It says adjoining residential uses.

Mr. Fitzgerald: But the adjoining use is commercial not residential so ... 

Chairperson Cardone: But, you’re saying that the owner owns the other piece of property?

Mr. Fitzgerald: He owns the rear parcel, yes, just recently purchased it.

Mr. Hughes: I was at that meeting when they rang this out in front of the Planning Board and I am very familiar with that project and this is a new owner from the guy that originally put the building up...

Mr. Fitzgerald: Yup.

Mr. Hughes: … for a different use all together. So you’ve got a compound series of things going on here and all of them are growing and growing and growing. The building was oversized to begin with and there were concessions made on this project to begin with and I think this isn’t really a matter of necessity or need here, but poor planning. 

Mr. Fitzgerald: Actually, I don’t think the building is oversized for the lot; it’s a 1.1-acre lot. I mean, I think the allowable building coverage is 40% and the building that’s on the lot is only 11%.

Mr. Manley: If it’s not an excessive building then why did the applicant have to come for a variance before?

Mr. Fitzgerald: Because the existing width of the lot was only 125 feet.

Chairperson Cardone: For the side yard setback.

Mr. Fitzgerald: For the side yard.

Mr. Manley: Right, that didn’t meet…

Mr. Fitzgerald: It wasn’t a coverage issue, it was…

Mr. Manley: Right, but, the original plan didn’t meet the requirements of the Zoning at that time so the applicant, not you’re applicant, but former applicant had to come before this Board in order to receive relief, correct?

Mr. Fitzgerald: Correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Fitzgerald: I think from a practical stand point what would have been allowed would have been about a 10 foot wide building, so …

Mr. Manley: But it appears that the Zoning Board at the time when the original applicant came before the Board did grant some sort of relief is that correct?

Mr. Fitzgerald: Yes, I was actually the engineer of that project, so I am familiar with it too.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: Essentially it’s a comment for the applicant, I do caution you, should the Board choose to grant your variance for this storage building you mentioned storage of pool chemicals which typically is Hth Chlorine which are all listed as Hazardous Materials. There are regulations; storages and quantities, where there is no exception but special attention in this particular case should be given to the separation to the residences. I know we’re talking about linear footage in the buffer and setback, but there is also a Public Health issue here and you will be subject to all of those regulations, NYS Fire Prevention Code, NYS Building Code, what you can put in that building. It will be limited.

Mr. Hughes: I’d like to say something else too, as far as the aspect of the interpretation of the intent of what was spelled out for the original applicant’s project at the time. The concerns that the residents, they expressed that whatever the building was going to be and at the time it was supposed to be a Golf Store. It was supposed to be nice and quiet and no chemicals and so forth. We’ve got a horse of a different color here now. My opinion of what that interpretation tried to spell out and it’s intent of spelling out what they said was to keep that thing a buffer zone, as a buffer zone, for the sake of the residences. So, that’s my opinion going into this.

Mr. Fitzgerald: O.K. I understand that and I think I can tell you from my memory and my experience with this project was, at the time, we really did believe it to adjoin a residential district in the back and recognizing that this was in the IB District because there are residences, although in the IB District there are residential houses that are closer than that 100 foot that that doesn’t apply to. And, the residences that are back on Leary Lane are actually greater than 200 feet. I did also provide some photos from the back part of Leary Lane looking out towards 17K so you could see that there is quite a bit of a grade change. If you look closely at the one photo that I provided you can barely make out the peak of the roof of the existing building. The shed you wouldn’t be able to see at all. It would be completely covered. I took the picture just a couple of weeks ago. Obviously there’s no leaves or all the vegetation is off the trees and you see how densely it’s, the vegetation is in there. You wouldn’t be able to see it at all from the rear of the property. 

Mr. McKelvey: We’ve all been back there.

Mr. Manley: If I could for the record, I just want to read a portion of the minutes from the meeting of September 26, 2002. At that time, Mrs. Cardone asked if there were any questions or comments from the public and a Neighbor #1 of _______ Lane stated he lives behind the building and asked how far the shaded area was from his property. Mr. Fitzgerald replied about 209 feet from the back property line. We actually tried to push the building forward for visibility and also to maintain a good portion of the site undisturbed. It is heavily wooded back there. There is no intention to develop that. We will leave that buffered. So, I just wanted to read that comment into the record.

Mr. Fitzgerald: O.K. I think that the feeling to is that the intent of installing the shed it doesn’t sort of violate the spirit of the intent of maintaining that buffer. All the vegetation except for this one tree that is in poor condition would come down and there would be the addition of 23, 12-juniper bushes that would surround the perimeter of that shed. So, I think the intent or the spirit is still being conformed with.

Chairperson Cardone: Again, how many feet into the buffer zone does that go?

Mr. Fitzgerald: The shed in depth is 30 feet, it encroaches about 20 feet back into the buffer and the width of the wall at the back of the shed is about 25 feet in length.

Mr. McKelvey: 18?

Mr. Fitzgerald: About 20, 18 feet to the back corner in its greatest intrusion into the buffer.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s the building but the wall; there’ll be a space between that wall.

Mr. Fitzgerald: A 3-foot space between the building and the wall. About 21 feet then.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions, comments? Any questions or comments from the public? We did not have a report from the county.

Ms. Gennarelli: It did not come back yet.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. So, we will hold this open pending the report from the County. 

Mr. Fitzgerald: Just for my own edification, that means it won’t be ruled on till next months meeting?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s correct. Actually we’ll have 62 days from the closing of the public hearing to rule on it.       
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Applicant is seeking a use variance for discontinuance of permitted use of a 1-family residence in an IB Zone to do interior alterations and repairs of house.

Chairperson Cardone: We have two items that were held over from last month, the first one at 172 Brookside Farms Road, Mr. Huda. 

Mr. Huda: Hi, I’ll appreciate if you give me permission to have Mr. Alan to speak about my case.

Mr. Schreier: I’ll take that as a yes?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Schreier: Thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you identify yourself for the record?

Mr. Schreier: My name is Alan Schreier, I work as a Paralegal in New York City and I was involved in the Huda’s purchase of the property and I’d like to state their case for them. First I’d like to apologize for only bringing one copy of the paperwork I had and also for the extraneous material. I do have a second copy if someone wants to look at it while I.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t think that the Board Members would really have time to digest all of this, this evening. If you could just go through all the items that are in there.

Mr. Schreier: Well, I’ll go through the ones that have (inaudible) for sale and see. So, first I am just going to read something I wrote. Fajilatun Huda purchased this single-family residence from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development as part of their program of selling foreclosed residential properties to recapture their losses on insured mortgages. Ms. Huda purchased the property signing an addendum to contract with HUD under penalty of fine and/or imprisonment stating that she would occupy the premises as her primary residence for at least the next 12 months. As a result of their situation, they bid $133,600 for the property, a price above the market value of the property. The appraisal done by Rural Appraisals for HMS, HUD’s management agent, a copy of which is included in the package, valued the property as is at $80,000 and the land value at $60,000. Having gone down the list of potential uses for a property in an IB Zone, I don’t see how converting the property to any of those could yield a reasonable return that would be provided HUD would allow such conversion. If HUD would allow them to sell, they have been told by the HUD licensed real estate company, a copy of the letter which is included in the package as well, that an as is price for the property to be used as commercial would be $59,000 as a starting price consisting with the appraisal results. A further indication of the value of the property was a discussion by Ms. Huda’s husband with a neighbor, a man who used to own the property many years ago, that the current value of the property was between $70 and $80,000. The report of the Orange County Department of Planning concurs with the statements I’ve made and recommends granting the use variance. Finally, a similar request was put before the Board in July of 2000 with issues seemingly similar to the matter before you was unopposedly approved. Therefore, with much appreciation for the help of all the people we’ve met and encountered on behalf of the Huda’s, I respectfully request that the use variance be granted. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: The circumstances were not exactly the same when they came before this Board in 2002.

Mr. Schreier: In 2000, they had an issue with also the lapsing of the use variance and it’s being as a residential property and constructed as such. So, not exactly but seemingly similar.

Chairperson Cardone: Then I am going to read from that Decision, the property was benefited by a legal non-conforming use for a residential dwelling however over a year ago the residential building was severely damaged, more than 50% by fire, repairs were promptly undertaken but were not completed within 1 year. And, the applicant has now completed the repairs and wishes to obtain the Certificate of Occupancy. So, I think that tells me the circumstances were different.

Mr. Schreier: I was referring to the later on paragraphs discussing the status of the property as a residential use, if I can go get the paper, I’ll read more. Or I can borrow yours for a second; I’ll read the piece that … thank you. In terms of whether the alleged hardship had been self-created, the last paragraph which says however there is more to this case simple neglect to complete repairs, the property is uniquely situated in a pocket of residential development in an IB District. Even if were not presently improved by a residential building it is doubtful that reasonable return could be obtained from non-residential uses. This hardship, which is a result of the limitations imposed on the property due to its locations, dimensions is not self-created. That was my reference in terms of similarity to the prior case.  I believe that what’s been explained to me is what happened is that whoever the prior owner was neglected the property and stopped paying is mortgage and then during the between the procedure of it being foreclosed and upon by the bank and then the bank conveying the property the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development and then marketing the property and selling it a period of time elapsed of un-occupancy which allowed the use variance to be removed. Now again, not to defend the ignorance of the purchasers all indications to them purchasing the property is that this was a single-family residence as marketed by the Federal Government. In addition to which tax searches and tax bills had the building classified as a 210, single-family residence. Only when they wanted to take that step of fixing what was wrong with the house due its neglect and applied for the Building Permit where they told that a use variance has lapsed and you can’t do that without going before the ZBA.

Chairperson Cardone:  And, that’s your argument for the hardship not being self-created?

Mr. Schreier: Correct. Combined with the similarity to the earlier statement by the decision of the Board in terms of not being a self-created hardship.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: It’s come to our attention that the Board was in error when they made that decision to begin with so I don’t think that we’re held responsible to hold that over.

Mr. Schreier: You mean the earlier Board?

Mr. Hughes: In 2000.

Mr. Schreier: Oh, O.K. I didn’t know that. 

Chairperson Cardone: It was a different set of circumstances.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm, it had lapsed twice. There was a lapse of that use variance twice before this applicant even got involved. So, that there was no continuance whatsoever. The discontinuance had already been in effect for a long time by the time the foreclosure started.

Chairperson Cardone: What we are looking at here is whether or not it meets the criteria that is required for a use variance. Any other comments from the Board?

Mr. Manley: Has the applicant submitted any of the other requirements from …

Ms. Martini: This is the package here. We just received a packet of additional documents regarding this.

Mr. McKelvey: I didn’t know we got that.

Mr. Hughes: May I, if we have time?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: The hardship is not self-created. In granting these variances in Clark vs. The Board of Zoning Appeals in the Town of Hempstead, the Court Appeals held that the one who knowingly acquires the land for a prohibited use cannot thereafter have a variance on the ground of special hardship, for example: a developer may not acquire land zoned residential at the time of an acquisition and successfully petition for a variance to construct office building. Whether the purchaser actually knew about the use restriction is not relevant. He is charged with a duty to discover such restrictions. In issuing a use variance, the Board may impose such reasonable conditions and restrictions that are directly necessary to and incidental to the proposed use of a property. What it says, that you have to do, is in dollars and cents prove to this Board beyond any reasonable doubt that there is no other way and the only way to really do that is to go through all the uses in that district and state the reason why the money couldn’t be recuperated from some other use other than residential.

Mr. Schreier: The value of the property, based on appraisal and a copy of which is included in the package and based on the valuation of the HUD licensed Broker who sold it to them on behalf of the U.S. Department of HUD both the appraised value of the property, if you were to go an say, I can’t make a go of this as a residential property around $60,000.

Mr. Hughes: That has no relevance to the criteria that is set forth by State Law. Shall I read it again? 

Mr. Schreier: The purchase price of the property was $103,600 so to now take that property and change its intended usage to now having a base value of $60,000 would be a significant loss to them.

Mr. Hughes: (inaudible) I understand what you are saying but it has nothing to do with what the Law calls for. Maybe the Chairman could read the criteria set forth for a use variance? 

Chairperson Cardone: For a use variance, would you like me to read that? The land in question cannot yield a reasonable return in dollars and cents if used for any use permitted in the Zone. 2) The use to be authorized by the variance will not alter the essential character of the locality. 3) The hardship is unique to the parcel and not general throughout the Zoning District. And, 4) the hardship is not self-created. And, unlike an area variance where you can give different weights to the different criteria, in the case of a use variance you must meet all four (4) of the criteria.

Mr. Schreier: So, which criteria has he not met?

Mr. Hughes: The last one.

Mr. Schreier: That it’s not self-created?

Mr. McKelvey: Right.

Mr. Hughes: They say it’s the applicants’ responsibility to know what they are buying.

Mr. Schreier: Well, again I would submit that the marketing of the property by HUD and requiring that its occupancy be a single-family residence is reasonable for him to assume that the United States is selling him something which he can use and again the issue of coming up with that this home which they are selling to him is actually cannot be used as such even though he is required by signed contract with them to use it as such the again gives him that reasonable effort to determine that the property could be used as such and the possibility of it being in a District which didn’t allow that was never entered his mind and reasonably shouldn’t have.

Mr. Hughes: Have you been out to the property, sir?

Mr. Schreier: Yes, I have.

Mr. Hughes: Could you tell me where they think they might be able to park?

Mr. Schreier: As you pass the property to the right, there is a driveway entering the property.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah?

Mr. Schreier: Well, I was there this evening.

Mr. Hughes: Not a right of ownership that I was aware of. We all have been out to the property. All the Board here, the Building Department, everybody, so we know the property.

Mr. Schreier: O.K. I mean I don’t know it that well and I again I don’t do it. But, when I did go there and as you pass the property on your right and drive a little past there is a what appeared, again it was dark, to be a driveway to enter onto the property.

Mr. McKelvey: It shows a gravel driveway on that side.

Ms. Eaton: It’s a steep little hill there I noticed when I was there.

Chairperson Cardone: I would like to read into the record the report from the Orange County Department of Planning: In this case, it is more cost effective to retain the use of the building as residential then to convert it into a business. We think that reoccupying a formerly vacant home will only add to the property in question and the surroundings in a positive way. The applicant intends to renovate a structure that if left unattended could fall into disrepair. The Planning Department recommends granting this use variance on these grounds of local determination that it could improve the surrounding area if the house if renovated in a quality fashion. Any other questions, comments from the Board?

Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Schreier: Thank you.
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Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Fajilatun Huda, 172 Brookside Farms Road seeking a use variance for a discontinuance of permitted use of a 1-Family residence in IB Zone to do interior alterations and repairs of the house. This is an unlisted Action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a negative declaration?

Mr. Manley: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor?

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: I feel very bad for the applicant and I have issue with two items: one is looking at the hardship issue, I am grappling tremendously with whether or not it is a self-created hardship or not and meeting that threshold. And, the second that I am battling with is the actual providing this Board with some real hard numbers with regard to whether or not this could be used for any other use permitted within that Zone. And, those are the two areas that I really have an issue with, applying the Law.

Mr. Hughes: I agree with Mr. Manley. I don’t believe they’ve met in the compliance of the criteria set forth by State Law and I agree with Mr. Manley, I concur completely.

Mr. McKelvey: I think Mr. Donnelly explained to him what he had to do and he didn’t do it.

Mr. Hughes: And, we’ve asked him for substantiations with numbers from an Accountant or some sort of financial firm and he didn’t provide that.

Mr. Manley: The difficulty is you can feel bad for somebody but still you have to try to apply the Law to the applicant.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, it was too long a period of time of discontinuation and the people that had it before it and then he didn’t provide for us what we asked him that was required by State Law.

Mr. McKelvey: This might be a HUD problem.

Mr. Hughes: Well, he’ll have to take that, that’s a civil matter and he’ll have to take that up with the bank.

Chairperson Cardone:  The only thing I question on this is the recommendation from the Orange County Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: It’s a generic thing from them as far as the Codes go, there is no infraction but as far as the process there is.

Chairperson Cardone: The process, right.

Mr. McKelvey: Did they say on there local determination?

Chairperson Cardone: They say that they recommended it, but it’s always up to Local Determination. So, it’s up to this Board.

Mr. Manley: The one thing though that you have to remember in the one case that we had a use variance request and the County didn’t give it blessing, but they strongly urged us to look at the strict requirements of the use variance.

Chairperson Cardone: They also did on this; they listed it right before the recommendation.

Mr. Manley: Right, so I find it odd that the County didn’t really stress that.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. It seems almost like a conflict because they wrote it, this is what needs to be considered and then …

Mr. Manley: In the same breath they said that they didn’t see an issue with it being used for residential purposes.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: Well, they say it’s more cost effective to retain it as a building of residential and they’re also looking at it if the building wasn’t maintained … suppose this guy walks away from it now and the building becomes full of rats or something? You know, that’s not a good thing there.

Mr. Hughes: The County has to lean on the Municipality, the Municipality gets charged against, but basically it goes back to the County.

Mr. Manley: And, then the County will be paying for it.

Mr. Hughes: To the State, the leans go back up to the State. Each piece of property is taxed and if it isn’t paid and the building crumbles, the Municipality can’t do anything with it, the County can’t do anything with it.

Ms. Drake: So, they feel if someone is interested in fixing it up to live in it, it’s better than it becoming run down. I think that’s where their angle is.

Mr. Hughes: That’s what it is, I agree with you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for disapproval?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: No

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: No

 







Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Hughes: For disapproval?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.








(Time Noted – 11:28 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007


(Time Noted – 8:50 PM)

GLEN & ANGELA SHAPIRO

16 ODELL CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-5-5) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking variances for lot area, lot width, lot depth, front yard, rear yard, side yards setbacks, lot surface coverage, maximum building coverage, increasing the degree of non-conformity with a taller building and docks must be 10 feet from adjoining property lines to build a new 3-story, 1-family residence with wrap around deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: The next application, which was held over from last month, is Glen and Angela Shapiro, 16 O’Dell Circle.

Mr. Minuta: Chairperson Cardone, Ladies and Gentlemen of the Board, my name is Joseph Minuta with Minuta Architecture, we have reported at the last meeting with regard to this application. I have with me tonight Mr. Shapiro and Mr. Shapiro, Mr. Shapiro’s Attorney. With regard to the property we took into consideration the comments of last meeting, which dealt with specific sections of speaking with the Homeowner’s Association, a letter coming from Mr. Coppola, which has been provided, and a person named Greg. I am not sure if Greg is in the audience. We will be reading that into the record this evening. We have taken into consideration some of the comments of moving the structure back toward the road. That in of itself poses its own problems because moving it back toward the road also requires a front yard variance at that point. I have provided two plans this evening. This is the original that was submitted last meeting. We have redone the calculations on the required areas, the setbacks, so all of them conform to this plan and there is a, we can compare them to the previous. At the backside of the property we have an existing 8-foot setback from the property line to the building itself. We considered moving that back to the 10 ft mark. However, moving that to the 10 foot mark part of the, let’s see here, 185-48.3 J regards the views. By moving this property back the additional two feet, the property of this side would actually impede the view of this subject property. To really put a fine point on this if we were to come to this evening with the existing plan and not propose anything to this property whatsoever we would be requesting the exact same variances we are requesting this evening. There is one, which is, let’s see here, extending a non-conforming, an existing non-conformance. And that would be by raising the building to add another floor. With that, I also submit that we are below the 35 foot height restriction therefore complying with the Code, the only hardship to this property is that it existed prior to Zoning and Zoning today to build this lot, it would not be a buildable lot. Having said that, I will show the other plan and I can also submit this, I have a set of both plans, I could submit them for the Board to review. The option we did consider was to move the house back. That’s what this plan shows. We also incorporated the 10 foot, we have a greater than 10 foot side distance for the dock. We, through this plan, we’ve actually increased and helped the existing side yard by 3 inches. Now, 3 inches may not be a lot, but with the constraints of this lot it’s a giving.

There have been some issues with regard to the building lot coverage, this is 3,635 sq ft lot plus or minus and the maximum coverage allowed is 15%. Therefore leaving 545.25 sq ft of building footprint. The existing is 803.41 sq ft. The proposed with the outdoor three-season room and it’s not a heated and cooled space and I believe the building department will confirm that being not heated and cooled does not necessarily deem it a habitable space. 

Mr. Mattina: Joseph Mattina, Code Compliance. We are still counting building coverage though. That’s where our 24 and 21% is different because it does still count in building coverage.

Mr. Minuta: Thank you for that.

Mr. Canfield: Gerald Canfield, Code Compliance. You are not comparing nuts to nuts here.

Mr. Minuta: O.K. Thank you. I do have a question, with regards to the building coverage are we considering that impermeable or permeable area?

Mr. Mattina: Building coverage is any structure with a wall and a roof.

Mr. Minuta: Any structure with a wall and a roof?

Mr. Mattina: It doesn’t get into foundations or anything, a wall and a roof.

Mr. Minuta: O.K. So, if this structure had a roof but no walls, would it be considered, how would that be considered? 

Mr. Mattina: We would have to see the exact design.

Mr. Minuta: O.K. Fair enough. That being said there are two options in front of us. The second option is a much larger cost to the owner because it would require a new retaining wall be built and that would actually come forward into the property even greater. We have existing grades, existing slopes, it’s been there for who knows how many years. It predates Zoning and that’s good enough for me at this point with regard to the drainage. By pulling this wall back we may actually change the drainage to the property, which could be a detriment. So, these are some unknowns that we won’t know until that happens, if that happens. So what we are requesting of the Board, this evening, is to consider the application on the same proposal that we proposed last time taking into consideration that we have come forth with a couple of more ideas as to how to facilitate this to appease everyone here. I also submit photographs. There’s three pages of photographs here and I have a few extras for the Board. You may wish to pass around.

The top left shows the view of the exterior rear portion facing the Lake, as the property exists. The property to the right hand side if we were to continue the line of the wall, the peach colored wall I’ll call it, if we were to continue that line that property of the screened porch actually comes out about another, based on the window sizes assume they’re 2 feet, we’re looking at about a 6 foot projection in front of that. When we take a look at the photograph directly below it the deck area is actually extending out approximately 8 inches to a foot beyond my clients. The view below that is the view out their rear window from this side viewing to the neighbor’s property. The view to the right of that is the same from the exterior viewing here. The view to the right of that views in the opposite directions. O.K.? Top center is the same view, viewing out into the existing boat dock and so forth. So, I think we get the general idea of that. We addressed the Squire’s request of taking a look at the site for their view, which is on the second page. The first picture on the top right you will notice that that was sidewalk from the Squire’s residence and you’ll see the Shapiro’s home directly in front it’s a peach color house. We take a look toward the center that view is from the interior which is the entrance to the porch, that the view out there. I think you can agree from these photographs, I am 6 foot in height about average I guess, the view from these locations there’s a view on either side of the home but there is no view directly on top of the home, of the Lake that is. As a matter of perspective this is also important to us cause by moving building back we change the perspective. The building actually becomes larger and would block some view. I present the top right and the middle right photograph to you with regard to the perspective of the lamp post that’s on the Neighbor #1’s property, up close it looks much larger and blocks a lot more view. A little further away it blocks less view. So, these are just some of the things that we need to consider when we are considering views. You’ll also notice on the third page, there is photograph to the left center, it’s the house to the right and the Shapiro’s house at this location with the tree in front of it, you’ll notice that the house to the right sits below the Shapiro’s home therefore any views outside that portion of the house cannot be had as it exists now so by going up would not harm that in any way. Finally, with regard to this application, the increase in height over the existing is 6 foot 10 inches give or take plus or minus, again below the 35 foot. At this point, I would like to introduce Mr. Jeff Shapiro, the attorney for Mr. Glen Shapiro and any comments that you may have.

Mr. J. Shapiro: Good evening, as Mr. Minuta said my name is Jeffrey Shapiro and I am the attorney for Glen and Angela Shapiro on this application. Now, I should say that the identical names are not a coincidence because Glen Shapiro is my brother. I’d also like to disclose for the benefit of the public that I served for approximately 4 years as the attorney for the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals. I last served in that capacity over 12 years ago. I left sometime in the middle of 1994. What that means is that all the matters in which I represented the Board are long since settled and this matter was not even a dream of anyone. So, there is no conflict of interest or other ethical problem that bars me from representing my brother before this Board. I’m just making this disclosure in the spirit of full public disclosure and to avoid any appearance of impropriety. Now before I start talking about the law in this matter I’d like to talk a little bit about history. I’d like to talk about first about the history of the property. As you probably see from the I believe the statement from Building Inspector was sent over upon your request for the Certificate of Occupancy the building has no Certificate of Occupancy because it was constructed some unknown time prior to 1956 and therefore predates any Zoning in the Town of Newburgh. I ask you to consider that whenever prior to 1956 more than 50 years ago, Orange Lake was not a residential, was by and large not a residential community. People did not live there year round, it mainly summer homes, people would come in for a few months out of the year, they’d fish, swim, ride their boats around and then they’d leave and go back to their lives elsewhere. Jumping ahead 50 years, that is no longer the case, Orange Lake has a significant presence of families, people who live in these homes year-round raising their families there and are quite rightly concerned about their quality of their neighborhood. Now, 10 years ago, some time in 1994 the property was purchased by my youngest brother, Adam Shapiro. And Adam and Glen began living in the property. I grew up in the 60’s so I don’t know anyway to phrase this, it went from being a summer home to being a bachelor pad, uh, two young men, brothers living together and doing the things that young men do. Adam left a few years later when he got married, let Glen continue to live in the place, Glen lived there either by himself or when he needed help paying off Adam’s mortgage with a succession of roommates and then a few years ago, Adam met, Glen met and fell in love with Angela and about a year ago they got married and what happened then, marriage does things to people, marriage as we all know kind of changes your outlook on things and a house that was good enough as a summer place or which was good enough as a bachelor pad suddenly didn’t seem quite right as a place as a home for a married couple or someday God willing a family and so they wanted to do what was necessary to make this into a home. Well as Mr. Minuta has said, I believe in the previous, in the previous appearance before the Board the property is not really suited for that. It’s something over 50 years old, it’s still habitable but time is taking it’s, is starting to show it’s effects and it cannot be renovated to the extent that would be hoped to make it into a home for a couple or a family and so they decided to take it down completely and start fresh with a nice new building that meets all modern Building Codes and standards. Now the neighbors, the people who, the other people, the other people raising families in the area in the neighborhood have come out here and they have appeared at previous in the previous meeting, I’ve read the transcript of that meeting, I’ve seen their concerns and I understand them completely. If I had, if I was living in that neighborhood and I got a Notice saying that somebody wanted to put a brand new building that needed 9 variances, I’d be breaking Speed Limits getting to Town Hall demanding to know what was going on. However, what I hope the neighbors now realize after Mr. Minuta’s two presentations and I hope what the Board realizes is that these variances are inevitable when you’re going to put up a new structure on the property. This is a non-conforming use, you’ve all seen the lot, it is an extremely small lot. It is very difficult to build on such a lot. Let me give you a little thought experiment here. Let’s say that Glen and Angela did not want to demolish the building. Let’s say that for whatever reason they decided to jack it up, slip a really big dolly under it and cart it off to put in storage someplace. And, leave it in storage for a year or however long it takes for the non-conforming use to expire. Then, they decide to take the exact same house, in the exact same condition and put it back on the exact same spot. Members of the Board, they’d need 8 of the 9 variances that they are asking for today. And here’s were it really gets interesting they wouldn’t need, let’s say they decided before they put it back, let’s say before they put it back they added an extra floor to it, the same floor that Mr. Minuta has planned for that raises the height of the house by 6 feet. If they did that and put the house on the back of the property, back on the property they wouldn’t need the ninth variance because the non-conforming use will have expired, therefore you’re not extending the non-conforming use and therefore, since the height of the building is still within Code you wouldn’t need a variance for the height. Now, let’s instead of talking about history now, let’s talk a little bit about the law and as talk about the standards of the Board well knows, which I had here, oh here it is, talk for a moment about what needs to be done for area variances which you are, I know you know all the standards but let’s apply them to the facts of this case. It has to be practical diffi …, the an applicant can have an area variance if there are practical difficulties in doing, if the Zoning Law causes practical difficulties in what he wants to do. And there are five criteria that the Law looks at to determine whether there is practical difficulties. First of all, the Law asks is this a substantial variance? The answer to that question in this case is no, not a substantial variance. This building is going to have the exact same footprint. You’ve seen the application, you’ve seen the steps that have been taken to make sure that this house has the same footprint, the new house is going to have the footprint as the previous house. Mr. Minuta has readjusted these figures to make one of the setbacks even less, 3 inches less than it was. So, there’s going to be no, no substantial variance here. Second thing here is would there be an undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood and again the answer is no. It was a 1-family residential use, it will continue as a 1-family residential use. It’s going to be a brand new building instead of a 50 plus year old building and it’s going to be on the exact same footprint as the old building and the height is going to be within applicable Zoning Law. So, there’s going to be no undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood. The next question is, can the necessity for the variance be obviated by other means, is there something else that can be done? Well, the answer is no. You’ve seen the lot; you’ve seen what it entails. The only way to move it farther back and away from the Lake carries it’s own problems as Mr. Minuta has explained and I’ll add one other thing when we’re talking about taking down the retaining wall that’s there, I respectfully submit that that’s going to cause it’s own, that very well may very well, I’m no engineer, but it may very well cause it’s own problems. Consider, you’ve seen the property, there’s that retaining wall is holding back a whole lot of ground at an extremely steep angle. Now, if you take that and that retaining wall has had absolutely no problems in the 10 years that my brothers owned this property. You take down that retaining wall and put up a new one, maybe the retaining wall will be as good as the old one, maybe it won’t, maybe the new retaining wall will cause problems to the road of Odell Lane itself, maybe it won’t. I just asked the Board to consider the old saying, if it ain’t broke, don’t fix it. Now, the question is, the next question is, is it a self-created hardship? Again, the answer is no. The house itself predates any Zoning in the Town of Newburgh. My brother’s’ ownership of the building predates the new Zoning Law. So, there is no self-created hardship. Now, as I’ve explained to you before the house is still very livable and there’s no problems with, you know, using it as a summer place or a bachelor pad. There’s no problem there, but time is as it’s stated in Mr. Minuta’s submission, time is beginning to take its toll on this 50 plus year old house. Sooner or later, that house is going to have to come down. And sooner or, that means that sooner or later somebody is going to be coming in front of you asking for pretty much these same variances that are being asked for today. So, there is no self-created hardship. This is simply an inevitability that’s going to come sooner or later. Now the last one is pretty much the catchall, will there be any adverse affect as a result of this? Again, no, the same footprint, the same type of property, same use, there will be no adverse affect from this variance. Glen and Angela Shapiro want to live on this property. They don’t want to live in a summer place; they don’t want to live in a bachelor pad. They want to live in a home, a nice, new decent home. They need your help to do it and as I’ve just explained to you the facts of this case and the Law permit you to give them that help.

And, I thank you for your attention.

Chairperson Cardone: There was a question last month about the various decks, patios and decks and whether or not there were Building Permits for those and if so, when they were issued and …

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you use the microphone please, thank you.

Mr. Mattina: Joe (Mattina) from Code Compliance. Basically, there were no Building Permits taken out for any decks. The Assessors picked it up, in 1998, as being built with no Permits. So, as far as we are concerned, there are none.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that was one of the questions, that we were raising, was we’re talking about the original footprint of the house and feeling that those decks were not really supposed to be included as a part of it. 

Mr. Mattina: Right, as far as our office is concerned, their decks are illegal and do not count in the existent footprint.

Chairperson Cardone: Does anyone else have any questions for Mr. Mattina while he has the mic?

Mr. Minuta: I do. Subject to that I have the title (inaudible) delivered by the Town of Newburgh, and I’ll read this in for the record: 

To whom it may concern this is an answer to your inquiry regarding the above-mentioned property, 16 O’Dell Circle Section Block and Lot, 51-5-5.0-0. Our files indicate that the above-mentioned structure was built prior to Town adopting Zoning Ordinance in 1956. Therefore there is no Certificate of Occupancy for this structure nor is one required. Please be advised that the above-mentioned road is a public road. In checking our files…

Sorry this is a little difficult to read, let me see if I have a cleaner copy.

 We found no record of any open violations on this property. No inspection of the premises has been performed and the statement concerning our records should not be relied upon, as meaning no violation in fact exists. According to our records, a permit to replace a porch, 5430 was issued in 1980, 20x38 feet that is. And a permit to convert a screened in porch into a sunroom, 6283, in 1985. These were closed out as completed. The unfinished basement is part of the original construction. Signed yours truly, Gerald Canfield, Code Compliance Supervisor. 

And that was dated 5/10/2006

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Mr. Canfield

Mr. Canfield: Thank you Joe. With respect to this letter, just for the record, what it is is a basic boilerplate letter, which is done as an Abstract or a Title Search some type of funding may have changed on the property. As it states, there is no CO required, the house predates Zoning. The Permits that are mentioned in the letter are the permits that are on file. The decks that I believe the Zoning Board was referring to last month were the ones that were constructed per the Assessor’s records in 1998, without a Permit. The Assessors Department, nor does our Department have a Building Permit for the decks that were in question. I hope that clarifies. This letter does not cover the decks that were in question. Ok?

Mr. Minuta: Thank you Mr. Canfield. With regard to the decks do we know in fact, that they, when these decks were constructed in the first place? Did they pre-date Zoning? Were they there prior to this 1998 re-construction of them? I don’t have any record, and I would ask the Town if they have records, supply that.

Mr. Canfield: The other thing in respect to that that I can offer perhaps to summon the Assessor Office they do have field personal that does travel around Town and compare actual property inventories with what’s in actuality at the locations. That was a note that was picked up on the Assessor’s Inventory Card, which was provided for the Board Members and the dates there. I have no way of ascertaining when the deck was built, all I can say is yes we don’t have a Permit for it. I can’t say when it was built however, a site inspection by Mr. Minuta’s office or my office, being familiar with construction could give you an era of the time of construction. Basically with the materials used, I mean it can be identified. We certainly should be able to tell if it was built in the fifties, sixties, or nineties.

Mr. Minuta: I would agree with that, it was re-constructed however so we don’t know if anything pre-dated that. That’s the only issue. With respect to the decks, I would like to know what the issues are with them. They are a permeable surface, they are wood decks, so the lot coverage is not being impeded for impermeable surface and for edification impermeable verses permeable that simply means the water is allowed to seep through the ground as it normally would verses lets say a patio of concrete, where the water would shed. So using a wood deck with the openings through that deck that allows the water to seep through as it normally would through any soil. 

Mrs. Drake: How many bedrooms is the house right now?

Mr. Minuta: One.

Mrs. Drake: And here its show it to be a two-bedroom house? So there was actually work done on it to convert the bedrooms?

Neighbor #1: Yea, it was a two-bedroom house when I owned it. 

Mr. Minuta: I have the floor plans here.

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you identify yourself please? 

Neighbor #1: My name is Neighbor #1.

Ms. Gennarelli: Neighbor #1? Thank you.

Mrs. Drake: So does the Building Department have record of it going from a two-bedroom house to a one-bedroom house?

Mr. Canfield: I’m sorry?

Ms. Drake: I was wondering if the Building Department had record of it going from a two bedroom to a one bedroom.

Mr. G. Shapiro: There was another owner in-between Neighbor #1 and us.

Neighbor #1: Owner #2 was his name; I sold the house to Owner #2. (Inaudible)

Mr. Manley:  Would it be the testimony of the applicant that it was a one bedroom when it was taken over? 

Mr. G. Shapiro: When my wife and I purchased the house it was a one bedroom. 

Mr. Manley: And you purchased the home from?

Mr. G. Shapiro: My brother.

Mr. J. Shapiro: I was converting the downstairs into a bedroom for myself; my roommate took the master bedroom upstairs. I slept right in the living room.

Mr. Manley: Downstairs in the basement?

Mr. J. Shapiro: Downstairs on the first floor, I slept, that was my bedroom, I slept right in the living room, I put a bed in it. And I rented the master bedroom to him. 

Mr. Minuta:  If I may interject so we are all on the same page with this residence. There is no basement there is a crawl area, there is a kitchen on the main floor, a dining room, a living room and the upstairs has a bedroom. So the bottom portion of this you crawl underneath it and you will find nothing but insulation. 

Mr. J. Shapiro: If I may, the dining room living area is actually one big open space. There’s a dining table on one end and there’s couch, chairs and a TV at the other end. So that’s what they are referring to as a dining room and a living room.

Mr. G. Shapiro: There’s basically a downstairs, right now there is a bathroom, a kitchen, and a living room/dining room. And then upstairs, you walk upstairs, and you’re in the bedroom. The house is pretty much all open, like it’s a (inaudible), there’s no, if your in the bedroom upstairs there’s no. It’s a summer place. It is what it is.

Mr. Minuta: With respect to that bedroom, Gerry, Code Compliance issues with the square footage of the bedroom, taking this from the exterior walls now. When I measure that out we have 320 square feet, for the bedroom. We subtract the stair and the closet and we’re roughly at 240 square feet, and that’s over all exterior walls, so with respect to bedroom size, if we were to cut that in half we wouldn’t meet the Code for bedroom. 

Mrs. Eaton: Does this have municipal sewer and water?

Mr. Minuta: Yes it does. 

Chairperson Cardone: In the area of the proposed outdoor three-season patio …

Mr. Minuta: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: What is that area currently?

Mr. Minuta: That area is currently a deck, a wood deck.

Mr. J. Shapiro: Which is not going to, let me explain, the problem last month was that the deck was the, the three-season room was sitting on that deck. OK which everybody is calling illegal. We’ve now eliminated that deck and retained the same line that the house has now. So we are not building anything on that deck area, as a matter of fact that deck isn’t even going to be there, its not even going to over hang with water anymore. We are retaining the same line of the house. The three-season room now is going to end where the living room ends now, retaining the views of the house to the right, retaining their view. The new plans we have laid out, no longer obstructs any view nor is it on, the wooden deck that is illegal. So that’s the case, that’s why we are moving the house ten feet, towards the road. 

Mr. Minuta: Mr. Shapiro, if I may, this is the problem with having to plans in front of a Board and a meeting, there’s a little confusion. First plan, the one we submitted last time, that’s this plan as the property exists. Having been modified as the property exists. Having removed a section here, we’ve increased the distance to the building.

Chairperson Cardone: So then the answer to my question was not the answer I was given. I asked what, I was looking at the second set and I asked what is now where the proposed three-season room is.

Mr. Minuta: Currently there is a deck here; this is the existing plan, the existing survey. This shows, this three season room, here, which is open, it’s not glass, it’s not glazed in, there’s simply open slats, it may retain open just as post and beam with a covering to keep you out of the rain so you can view the lake. That is over the existing deck. And that is in the location of the deck itself. And that is on the plan S-1 so we are very clear, that’s not this plan.

Chairperson Cardone: It say’s new site plan.

Mr. Minuta: We have two. Here. This is the existing line of house.

Chairperson Cardone: This will have no roof?

Mr. Minuta: That will have a roof, no walls

Chairperson Cardone: It will have a roof?

Mr. Minuta: No walls

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield

Mr. Canfield: I’m a little confused, and if I may suggest something to the Board, and I think Mr. Minuta touched on it one hundred percent, we are all very confused because now you have two plans. And Mr. Shapiro, I do remember you when you were Zoning Board attorney, I had hair then. We haven’t had the opportunity, we the Code Compliance Department, to review the alternate plan. The calculations as far as lot coverage’s. What your actually deficiencies are or the variance requests are. We have not had the opportunity to review that and present to you in the form that you’re used to receiving from us, in light of the form. And listed what variance the applicant is actually requesting. I think we’re somewhat confused now, and I do attribute that to having two plans before you. But before there is any conversation or we get put on the spot to answer questions, in our defense, I don’t know what this is, and I would like to be afforded that opportunity, and not in five minutes. I would like to be able to take it back to my Office, have Mr. Mattina and myself review it and then we can properly present to the Zoning Board, what the deficiencies as we see as Code Compliance and then perhaps the applicants representative can make a case to you, defendable or not, and what variances they are actually requesting. But as it is right now, I don’t know. I am confused. 

Chairperson Cardone: And I think it would be more clear to the neighbors if they could see exactly what you’re talking about.

Mr. J. Shapiro: Excuse me for one second

Chairperson Cardone: That is why I asked that question, they need to know this.

Mr. Minuta: Ok, very well, the owner agrees, I agrees, I think it’s a fair assumption for everyone. I do want to preface that we left the last meeting as an open session, as sort of this is designed by committee. So that’s why we brought in another plan to show you, to meet that request for set back and pulling the house back ten feet. I am not sure who recommended it last time, but we did take that into consideration. So be that as it may, with the respect to the building, itself, no matter what we do, we have the exact same variances. It doesn’t matter which plan we have. We have the same variance issues. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t agree with you there. It doesn’t matter it does matter. It matters to the neighborhood; it matters to the State Law and everything else. 

Chairperson Cardone: And it matters to us.

Mr. Hughes: And I would like to say this too, I would like to know if your going to move that building back, eight or ten feet, where are you going to park the cars?

Mr. J. Shapiro: In regard to the first statement, discuss this with Mr. Shapiro …

Mr. Hughes: Can I get back with him, because I was speaking with him and I will get to you next? 

Mr. J. Shapiro: Certainly. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Minuta: Mr. Hughes with respect to the parking, the parking is as it has been since 1950 and prior to that.  

Mr. Hughes: If you move that building where are you going to park?

Mr. Minuta: Same space.

Mr. Hughes: You’re going to have enough room with the new retaining wall? 

Mr. Minuta: You have, this line here, represents the flush embankment.

Mr. Hughes: This is a discussion, not an argument.

Mr. Minuta: No, fair enough. 

Mr. Hughes: Keep it in mind.

Mr. Minuta: That’s the only place there is to park. That is where historically everyone has parked.

Mr. Hughes: Will you have enough room to park two cars there when you are all done with the retaining wall and everything?

Mr. G. Shapiro: May I jump in here and maybe try to clarify this a bit?

Mr. Hughes: Go Ahead.

Mr. G. Shapiro: We don’t want to build a new retaining wall.  We want to leave the house on the same sight as it is, as I explained, in my presentation. The only way to address some of the issues raised, would be to push the house back and create a new retaining wall. That as Mr. Minuta and I both explained creates its own whole new set of real and potential problems, and we do not want to do it. And the only reason that it was raised was to point out, that it is not as feesable, and would create more practical difficulties, than the plan had presented. 

Mr. Manley: May I ask a question, a follow up to Mr. Hughes? And that is, the way the house is sitting in the second proposed plan, if you move the house closer to the road ten feet, do you need to do anything with the retaining wall? That’s my question.

Mr. J. Shapiro: Absolutely. There isn’t ten feet, between the house and retaining wall. 

Mr. Manley: That’s all I needed to know. My second, and it’s more of a statement, something for you to consider, and that is, when I look at the property and I am standing there, its very difficult for me, and I’m, sure not only for me, but the residents and probably every body on this Board to really picture what, and I understand what you are saying that the home when it’s constructed will be under the height requirements for the Zoning ... 

Mr. J. Shapiro: Correct

Mr. Manley: However you still need a variance. 

Mr. J.  Shapiro: Because as the Board interprets its law as, its entitled to do.

Mr. Manley: Going up changes … 

Mr. J. Shapiro: Going up changes. You’re thinking three dimensionally.

Mr. Manley: And there is a reason why. Because of view obstructions, 

Mr. J. Shapiro: Of course.

Mr. Manley:  … with potential view shed issues. Its very difficult even with a photo to picture what something is going to look like, because often times when you visualize something in your own mind, in reality ends up being much bigger than what you pictured. I will give you an example. There have been people that have gone before the Zoning Board for height variances, and I’ve gone out later on to see what the results of that is and often times when I see it, when I actually see it, when its completed, is much different than what I pictured it to be in my mind. So when I go out to this particular property, and I look at it, I’m trying to visualize what it’s going to look like. But it is very difficult in a picture to be able to visualize that, and that’s one of my main concerns. 

Mr. J. Shapiro: They say a picture is worth a thousand words. Well, actually being on the scene is worth a whole novel as far as I am concerned. I don’t think that, it’s a perfectly valid question even with the best of pictures; it’s hard to really see what’s going on. I don’t think . …  I would certainly be willing to meet you on the site, I think Glen would be glad to meet you on the site, Mr. Minuta, you want to come, stand where Mr. Minuta stood, I think that would be an excellent idea.

Mr. Manley: Well, I’ve been there and what I’m saying is the hardest thing is to be there and visualize because your only seeing what you see currently.

Mr. J. Shapiro: Well, the point that I think, let me just say one thing, the point that Mr. Minuta was making in his presentation was, the concern is, as you just stated with blocking the view. Now what he was saying was, here’s what it looks like, the house as it stands blocks the lake completely from view. You cannot see the lake over or through the house right now. Therefore Mr. Minuta’s point is, making no changes on the side and adding six feet to the height does nothing to the view because the lake is already completely blocked within the house as it exists. 

Mr. Manley: So then the testimony that you are making is six more feet won’t make much of a difference.

Mr. J. Shapiro: In terms of blocking this neighbors view, of the lake, yes. It would be inconsequential because the lake is already completely blocked within the house as it exists and by keeping the house where it is and not moving it back, you wouldn’t be changing the view from either side of the house at all.

Chairperson Cardone: Neighbor #1 you had …  

Neighbor #1: It just seems ridiculous, to say its not going to block the view if your raise it six feet. I am six feet tall. If your standing behind me, you’re sitting in that chair, are you going to be able to see past me? I am sure everyone can hear me, if you want me to talk louder I will.

Chairperson Cardone: We need it to go onto the tape. 

Neighbor #1: Ok. The thing is, it may not be blocking the view, it may be blocking the view of the water, but its not blocking the view of Neighbor #2’s house. Or Neighbor #3’s house, or Neighbor #4 when she is out on the front lawn. I may not be able to see the actual water. 

Mr. Minuta: This is what we are talking about.

Neighbor #1: You took a picture of my lamppost.

Mr. G. Shapiro: We are talking about blocking the view of another person’s house.

Neighbor #1: No all the houses, that are on the other side of the lake.

Mr. J. Shapiro: The houses on the other side of the lake? Now, we’re not even talking about water now.

Neighbor #1: There’s not even one picture here that depicts.

Mr. G. Shapiro: So we are talking about blocking someone’s view of houses

Neighbor #1: First of all, here is the only decent picture; there’s none, none of these pictures are from my back porch.   

Mr. Minuta: Yes, let me illustrate that. May I? Thank you. Ok.

Neighbor #1: I will bring my own pictures to the next meeting.

Mr. Minuta: This view is standing at your front door, through your porch, that is what the house would look like. I have drawn in, a rendition of the height of that house. Now I will show you another picture showing…

Neighbor #1: Where is the one with the existing house?

Mr. Minuta: I am going to show you that right now. 

Neighbor #1: Here’s the house here.

Mr. Minuta: Same picture.

Neighbor #1: The only reason why I am making this effort is because I made the mistake, of allowing the Neighbor #5’s to put their addition up without looking at the pictures. And now I have a view a barn. Ok, their house is from the lake it’s gorgeous, but from O’Dell circle it looks like a barn. 

Mr. Minuta: If the people will look at these too. This photograph is the existing; this photograph is my rendition with my architecturally trained eye, for scale, placing that house there. Now can you tell me what the distinction is here, besides looking at the rooftops of homes across the lake? 

Neighbor #1: I’ll tell you I am looking forward to them having a new home, because I owned the house and I know it’s a caddy shack, ok. But to me raising the roof six feet is a significant raise, end of conversation, that’s all I am saying. Six feet is a lot.

Chairperson Cardone: Every word is in the record.

Mr. Minuta: Neighbor #1 your point is well taken and I respect your point…

Neighbor #1: I owned the house; I lived there, ok.

Mr. Minuta: Which?

Neighbor #1: That house.  If you check the deeds, back before Owner #2. Neighbor #1’s family owned it.

Chairperson Cardone: It says it right here.

Neighbor #1: We were the legal owners of the residence.

Mr. Minuta: I am not sure how that is relevant this application but I thank you for that.

Neighbor #1: Well I know the original house, I know the original footprint, I know all the additions that were done. I know there were zero decks on the house. 

Chairperson Cardone: And when did you sell this house with zero decks?

Neighbor #1: I don’t know but I am sure the tax records if we pull them up; my mother’s not here. She is in Florida. All this is got to be in writing somewhere. 

Chairperson Cardone: Ok 1980?

Neighbor #1: Probably.

Chairperson Cardone: Owner #2, was Owner #2 here?

Neighbor #1: No he we was the man who engineered most of the upgrades. When we owned the house it wasn’t even insulated, there was no insulation in the walls. 

Mr. Minuta: To that point, that’s part of; you understand what we are trying to do, we are trying to increase the homes integral value of Thermal Compliance, Code Compliance, there’s people living here, ok. The home sits on a lake; you have moisture that gets into the wood. I can go through a whole shpeal of the structural integrity etc… but I think we all get the point. 

Chairperson Cardone: But if the decks were not there 1980, they did not precede Zoning. 

Mr. Minuta: Fair, and if there is record of that I will be happy to entertain it, but to date there is none.

Chairperson Cardone: By his testimony and here I have here the record that he sold the house in 1980, and he is stating that when he sold the house there were no decks. 

Mr. J. Shapiro: Well that if I may, he sold the house in 1980, with no deck’s, Adam Shapiro purchased the property in 1994, that gives us a fourteen year gap. Do we know if that owner added any decks?

Mr. Manley: It looks like Adam Shapiro purchased the house in ‘03

Mr. G. Shapiro: No it was a re-fi in ‘03

Mr. J. Shapiro: It was ’98?

Mr. G. Shapiro: ’98-‘99

Mr. J. Shapiro: Ok

Mr. Manley: Well actually ’97 it was owned by Owner #2, ok, ______ and _____. 

Mr. J. Shapiro: Ok so ‘98

Mr. G. Shapiro: My brother bought it in ’98 … 

Mr. Minuta: If I may I would like to submit to the Board what I just showed Neighbor #1 and answering your question. There are several views here of the existing pictures and I have sketched in what the home would be. That is the existing view. That would be the pros view. I have another photo, of that. These are views, in front of the house; I don’t know how many views you would like me to take. I can take only as many as you request, but there is a litany of views that we can take to what point and what extent I would submit that if the home owners of the lake had a specific view in mind and they take a photograph of it, provide it to me and I will be happy to sketch in what the house will look like on that photograph. If that helps the situation.

Chairperson Cardone: So, you stated you did or you didn’t meet with the Homeowners Association?

Mr. Minuta: I spoke Mr. Jay Coppolo with regard to that; we tried to find Mr. Gesmundo’s number for contact and we were unable to do that in the time frame that we had. We did contact the Town they didn’t have that information. The only person on record with the town for the Homeowners Association or Civic Association, as it may be, was Mr. Coppola. So that’s the only contact that I have had with anyone and again, Greg, (is that correct?) has a letter from Mr. Coppola that’s to be read into the minutes this evening. 

Chairperson Cardone: I would like to have him do that now. 

Mr. Langer: Thank you. Mr. Gesmundo is here as well. Do you want a copy of this? Greg Langer, I am with the Orange Lake Civic Association. My actual residence is _____________. This is a letter from Jay who is down in Florida, along with Neighbor #1’s mother. 

Greg please have the following read into the minutes of the next Zoning Board meeting, on the above subject issue. I have received a letter from Minuta Architecture dated January 4, 2007, stating that on December 28, 2006 that the Zoning Board hearing for the Shapiro residence, he referenced a conversation we had regarding the cantilevered deck extension, a few feet over the lake. He stated I took no exception to this item. After the receipt of this letter in a telephone conversation, with Mr. Minuta, I reminded him that he was in fact, true, but only part of my comment to him. The comment continued to state that while it may not be a concern of ours, the only governing body to rule on such an issue would be the Zoning Board and or the Planning Board of the Town of Newburgh. We at the Orange Lake Civic Association do not have such power to make any decision on a Code issue. I also informed him of a situation directly across the cove or a residence, building part of their structure out over the lake and had to be corrected. I would also remind the Zoning Board as well as Mr. Minuta of our successful efforts, in amending Chapter 185 entitled Zoning of the Code of the Town of Newburgh Lakefront Access. This was Local Law number six of the year 2005, and its now in the present Zoning book of the Town of Newburgh. Please refer to the new sub section, 185.48.3 paragraph J #4, of the Local Law, which is written to protect any existing view of a lake from an existing dwelling, or a lake front yard, or any adjoining property or property opposite the road frontage containing the structure. I have not had the opportunity to review any drawings of site plans and therefore cannot make any comments on their proposed building plan but it has been and remains the position of all of us at the lake community, that we are in favor of the improvement of an older existing structure to the more year round homes that are showing up all around the lake. We wish nothing but good for Mr. Shapiro, and hope that he considers all of the above and any of the intelligent comments that may be made by his neighbors. Thank you for the opportunity to address this issue. 

Jay Coppola, Vice President, and Chairman of the Planning and Zoning Board of the Orange Lake Civic Association.

Mr. Minuta: Thank you. That having been said, I think the letter speaks for itself. As I had stated in my previous …

Chairperson Cardone: What about that cantilevered deck? 

Mr. Minuta: Pardon?

Chairperson Cardone: The deck that he is referring to, that’s no longer in existence, correct?

Mr. Minuta: The deck as it exists is cantilevered, it’s also cantilever on the property next door. It’s cantilevered on many properties. That does exist, referring to my previous meeting here with regard to Mr. Coppola’s comments, I did state and it’s in the record that he took no exceptions, which means he did not approve nor disapprove and has relied on the Board for that. With regard to the cantilever it’s ... they just want to build a house. Want to pull back from the lake? Let’s pull back from the lake. We are dealing with a dwelling; we are not dealing with decks we are dealing with a home. The decks as they may be, I don’t know if you prefer grass area verses a deck, he just wants to build a house. 

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t think it was the issue of the decks, but the idea that there would now be a roof and there would be walls and that it would no longer be an open deck but an enclosed structure which is not the same as a deck.

Mr. Minuta: Agreed.

Chairperson Cardone: That was the issue.

 Mr. Minuta: Agreed. And since you have been to the property you have seen the decks and the pergola above which is open air, the posts, and beams. We’re proposing …

Chairperson Cardone: Without a permit.

Mr. Minuta: Pardon?

Chairperson Cardone: Without a permit.

Mr. Minuta: That has yet to be determined.

Chairperson Cardone: I think it’s been determined. There is no Permit on record. They were built after 1980. So there should be a Permit. They were keeping records in 1980, am I correct? 

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct

Chairperson Cardone: Absolutely.

Mr. J. Shapiro: I think the question is by whom was a deck originally constructed.

Chairperson Cardone: It does not matter who constructed it, it still is not a legal deck.

Mr. J. Shapiro: I just said so; just to make clear that there’s no accusation of any unclean hands.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh no.

Mr. J. Shapiro: Ok. Just wanted to clarify that.

Mrs. Drake: At the last meeting you were presenting a extension of the cantilevered deck also. Which is an issue that was brought up and I don’t believe you have addressed that either.

Mr. Minuta: I’d be happy to address that. Would be happy to keep the existing, pull it back, we had it out for the extra two feet that it was, simply for access from this area. We can remove the doorways that were proposed there, the openings, they were lattes work, opened areas and have access this way.  So that would assent in essence, in fact, eliminate that cantilever, completely. 

Mr. J. Shapiro: I was just going to say, I have spoken to Mr. Shapiro, and if it would help and ease everybody’s concern on this and if Mr. Minuta could just revise the plan so the Building Inspector can see what it looks like, Mr. Shapiro would be willing to do this: have the plan as it exists, have the Board approve the Board as is exists but for the proposed outdoor three season front patio, and make that a separate application at another time. If that addresses the Board’s concerns.

Chairperson Cardone: Any plans I think have to be submitted to Mr. Canfield and Mr. Mattina so that they get a chance to respond to it and give us their input.

Mr. J. Shapiro: Fine. Just trying to work with the Board here.

Mr. Manley: I think that this particular area of the Town has some unique issues with regard to property size, it has some unique issues with respect to the fact that originally these homes were never designed to be lived in year round, as you mentioned, as times change, people are looking to live their year round and it presents some significant sometimes in some cases, significant changes so I think that that is one of the reasons why the Town has changed the Regulations back in ’05 to address some of these issues because let’s face it today people are trying to build huge houses, I’m sure you have seen them on the lake where they have built these huge houses that just don’t fit on the property, and I think that the prides of a lot of the residents have resulted in where we are at today. 

Mr. J. Shapiro: And as I said in my presentation, I understand those concerns completely and to a large extent agree with them. If I may the whole purpose of a Zoning Board of Appeals, and the process of granting variances is precisely to address individual circumstances of individual homeowners, so that the quite rightly needed Zoning Laws did not become a straight jacket. Now in this case, we have a homeowner who has, you might call it a twofer, a doubly, non-conforming use. It existed prior to the current zoning Law. It existed prior to any Zoning Law and all he is trying to do is construct a new building which has the same footprint as the old one. The outdoor, three season patio has become a sticking point. Mr. Shapiro is willing to eliminate that, as a gesture of good will. We can address that in a separate application at another time, maybe a year or two down the road after this has been, I hope, approved and constructed, but just for right now all he is looking for is a house with the same footprint as the old one and at a height that is below what, just so everybody understands, if Mr. Shapiro were to bulldoze the property, leave it vacant for a year and then build something new, the one things he would not need a variance for is the height that he is asking for now because that height is permitted under the Zoning. It’s only the fact it is a non-conforming use that requires a variance now. But if he turns this into a vacant lot for a year that goes away. 

Mr. Manley: With regard to the applicant, would the applicant be willing to seek the variances without any of the decks, based on the fact if the decks did not exist, if the decks were added some time after 1980, which appears to be the testimony of …

Mr. J. Shapiro: As I understand, he purchased the house with these decks there.

Mr. Manley: But if there’s no Permit, it’s as if they don’t even exist, so then would …

Mr. G. Shapiro: I think we’re entitled to the house, I don’t understand what, if you’re buying a house, get a clear title …

Mr. J. Shapiro: Wait a minute, wait a minute.

Mr. G. Shapiro: You get clear title on a house; you assume that you’re buying a legally built house.

Mr. J. Shapiro: You are essentially asking him to possible pay for the mis-deeds of a prior owner and if he didn’t. 

Mr. G. Shapiro: That’s exactly why you do a title search on a house.

Mr. Hughes: If I may?

Chairperson Cardone: There are a couple people who would like to speak, we will start with Mr. Hughes and there is a gentleman on the end.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Shapiros I think we are getting too far out in the weeds here with all this stuff and if I could suggest we reel this back in. Our Board here and the neighbors evidently haven’t seen in detail what we would like to see about your proposals so for the sake of time and everything else, could your represent to us and the neighbors and meet with the neighbors, so that everyone can see, not just the same page, that’s not close enough I want to be on the same note. And I don’t agree with the attorney Mr. Shapiro, that offering to take that away now. Segmentation is only going to complicate the matter at this point. Let’s get a clear plan, of where; are you going to move it back from the water?

Mr. Minuta: Mr. Hughes

Mr. Hughes: Are you going to remove that shed? Are you going to make the retaining wall? We need to know all that, the room on the front their I mis-spoke.

Mr. Minuta: Mr. Hughes, for the record, I contacted the Zoning Board Office and asked if the changes to the plans that we had discussed of this ten foot move back needed to be submitted prior to this meeting and I was told no. So there is a whole opportunity that is lost over this month.

Mr. Hughes: Who did you contact?

(Inaudible)

Mr. Minuta: Yes I did.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Minuta: I beg to differ. 

Mr. Hughes: Well there seems to be some mis-communication here and I would like to clear it up for the benefit of everybody involved with this thing, we have spent a lot of time on this tonight. We spent a lot of time on it the first night. 

Mr. Minuta: For the benefit of this application …

Mr. Hughes: If you would re-submit your final plans to us, we will be back here next month.

Mr. McKelvey: I think Jerry would like to say the final plans.

Chairperson Cardone: There are a number of people that would like to see them, the Building Inspector would like to see them, the Members of the Zoning Board would like to see them in time, to really look them over, and I think that a meeting with the Civic Association it’s called, I don’t want to call it the wrong name. I think that a dialogue with that organization would be also beneficial.

Mr. Minuta: Happy to do it, my last meeting I gave my phone number, and asked anyone in this room, or any homeowner to contact me. In the past month I haven’t had a single phone call at my office.

Mr. Hughes: The lady that lives next door to you, did she get a hold of you?

Mr. G. Shapiro: No body even came to me asking any questions

Mr. Minuta: No one. No one. It’s only at this Board Meeting.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Minuta: and they did, and we went over to their home so in the past month, to hold Mr. Shapiro out.

(Audience outburst)

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me. Excuse me. Everyone will get a chance to speak, but we cannot hear if several people are talking at the same time. Finish answering it and then Mr. Mc Kelvey would like to make a statement. The next person to have their hand up was Neighbor #1. Excuse me. He’s going to finish, then Mr. McKelvey and then you.

Mr. Minuta: With all do respect, we have provided opportunity for everyone, we’ve made concessions, even at the last meeting, we asked to stay the vote so that we didn’t inconvenience the other home owners in the area and we did that for you. To ask you, and please understand that we did that for you, and I also provided my telephone number and asked anyone who had a question to contact me and I would be at their home to help do a view shed, that’s on the record. No one has called or contacted my office. My question is why has that not happened, and why does it come to this Board Meeting, when these questions are raised yet again, when we could have mitigated this process for the past month? This puts my client in a predicament of finance for another month, of holding out for another month, of being able to live in his home, the way he wants to live in his home just the same way you all live in your homes. For why? I don’t understand the reason behind it. And, we have designed a beautiful home for him. It is a, if you take a look we’ve seen the existing home. You all know what it looks like. Tell me this is not an improvement to your properties; tell me this is not an improvement to your values. I don’t understand what the issues are here and we are not taking away from anyone in particular. At this point I’ll hold for further questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Mc Kelvey next.

Mr. Mc Kelvey: I would just like to ask is there a Civic Association and a Homeowners Association? Or are they the same?

Mr. Gesmundo: They are pretty much one and the same.

Mr. Mc Kelvey: Because last month we talked about Homeowners.

Mr. Gesmundo: It’s called the Orange Lake Civic Association.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s not called the Homeowners Association.

Mr. Hughes: I’d like to add to the record as well that we advised you because of the shortness of the Members of the Board last month that it wouldn’t be in your benefit to ask for a ruling that night, so the statement that you just made prior to this, we gave you more than an open opportunity to understand what you are faced with as far as a ruling from this Board and that we only had four Members, and that you would need a super majority.

Mr. Minuta: With all do respect that was given to everyone prior to the Meeting. I opened up the Meeting stating that with your permission we would like to do that.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Minuta: Where do we go from here is the question and … ?

Mr. Hughes: Get it re-submitted with all the pertinent information on what the real plan is going to be. There will be no segmentation of this. Not with, well we will do this now, and we will be back to you later.  

Mr. J. Shapiro: And if the porch were to be the sole reason for the Board to deny the application what would we do then?

Mr. Hughes: You’re the attorney…

Mr. J. Shapiro: Would the Board then permit a re-application, a new application to be  submitted, a new plan without the porch?

Ms. Martini: A new plan Mr. Shapiro is a waste of minutes.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Shapiro you know that we have to rule on what’s brought before us.

Mr. J. Shapiro: I understand that sir, and the only reason that I proposed removing the porch was not to cause any additional difficulties but to cure the ones that exist.

Mr. Hughes: But if you say you will be back later with an application for it later. So that’s not any good bargain there. If that’s a carrot you’re waiving … 

Mr. Mc Kelvey: And if he is saying he wants to take it out now he is changing everything. 

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Ms. Martini: Yea.

Mr. J. Shapiro: We will leave it as is and we will make our presentation on that basis.

Mr. Hughes: In the same footprint?

Mr. J. Shapiro: Yes sir.

Chairperson Cardone: But that is the issue. The issue is for me, anyway, and different Board Members will feel differently, we are seven different people that are on the Board, and we don’t all think the same way. My issue is, I don’t think that you are following the original footprint. That’s the issue that I have. And I don’t know how the Building Inspector agrees with me or not but I feel that as long as you are building something that enclosed porch where the deck is you are not following the original footprint. Do you agree with me Mr. Mattina?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, that’s why I said before, rear yard setback.

Mr. Hughes: The footprint’s the foundation.

Mr. Mattina: Right, the screened in room, violates the rear yard setback, that’s what they are going for.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Mattina: So as the only, that’s the only Bulk Requirement they need on sunroom, is a rear yard. Everyone keeps referring to this 148.3 J. That has nothing to do with this. Everybody seems to be hung up on that. 

Chairperson Cardone: I know.

Mr. Mattina: It has nothing to do with this really.

Mr. Minuta: Sorry sir, that came up in the last meeting. So with respect to that, as we stated before, if it doesn’t have walls but it has a roof, does it need a setback?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Minuta: Ok. Fine. The application standing with the exception of the proposed three season room being removed from this, everything else stays the same, that three season room comes off, it holds the same footprint, built the home within the same volume, with the exception of the second floor, excuse me, the third floor, which we already know is going to require residential sprinkler system, does the Board have an issue with that in particular?

.

Mr. Hughes: Footprint being described as over the original basement? 

Mr. Minuta: There is no basement. We have a survey provided by Bill Hildreth’s Surveying, which is this plan, which has been referenced. This shows the property, it shows the footprint of the existing building. We would like to build the home on that existing footprint area which is why we came before you this application. We designed this specifically for that so we didn’t increase anybody’s issues, if you will. That’s the application before us, before you. We would like to build in the same footprint, ok? Let’s eliminate this back portion, really, honestly its insignificant to the over all. Please take a look at the elevation. I will think you will understand it’s not a two story, or three story, it’s simply a roof.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, we’ve been out there; we’ve been out to the site.   

Mr. Minuta: I am referring to the proposed, which is this area this little bump out here. Enclosed, ok? If that is putting this whole thing in a pickle, take it out. We still have the same house. We still have the same application. So, we could still discuss this, within a potential approval of this project minus this proposal and then we build in the same footprint. 

Mrs. Drake: I think the Building Department still needs to look at the plans.

Mr. Minuta: The plans haven’t changed. It’s the same plan that we submitted two months ago, and we are saying that this is simply going to be removed and we don’t want the cantilever over the edge. 

Mr. G. Shapiro: I just want to ask the public. If we get rid of that three season room, is there any complaints?

Neighbor #6: That was my complaint.

Mr. G. Shapiro: That one or eliminating the three-season room?

Chairperson Cardone: Just identify, just for the record.

Neighbor #6: Neighbor #6, I am homeowner on the right. I had had contact with your wife, several times, so maybe you want to talk to her about what she has said about this in terms of contacting you. And, it’s your issue later. As you know from the last meeting, my main objections have always been blockage of my views, which primarily which would come from this three seasons room and its violation of the lake Laws, the rear set back Laws. Other than that I really didn’t give you a hard time on too many other things. Although I feel as though you think I am. Although Mr. Minuta keeps saying, I don’t have views from my bedroom, which I do from every window. But I knew that when you were going to build that there would be some blockage and I didn’t say anything, so you know let’s just get that straight. So I kind of would like you not to say I don’t views that I do have. That being said, if you are saying that the new house that you propose to build will stop at the same property line and not extend further to block any of my existing views, or violate any of the laws as well as the deck and the navigation of the dock, then I don’t have objection to it provided you are not seriously blocking or hindering the neighboring neighbors, in terms of their views and the side property lines. 

Chairperson Cardone:  O.K. Neighbor #4, identify yourself. 

Neighbor #4: Neighbor #4. Same __________. 

Neighbor #4: Could I ask the present height of the house that’s there now.

Mr. Minuta: Absolutely. The existing height of the home is 24ft, plus or minus.

Neighbor #4: And you’re going up to, I was told 33.10

Mr. Minuta: Its thirty foot, ten inches. Which is an increase of six feet.

Neighbor #4: That would beyond the nine feet that you said last week. So that would be fifteen feet about street level? 

Mr. Minuta: No.

Neighbor #4: No.

Mr. Minuta: Lets not confuse the nine feet. I said nine feet about street level.

Neighbor #4: That’s what I just said.

Mr. Minuta: Not fifteen feet.

Neighbor #4: No nine and six make fifteen.

Mr. Minuta: No. Lets not confuse the issue. We are looking at different elevations. The home from the road is a nine-foot difference. 

Neighbor #4: Presently?

Mr. Minuta: It will be.

Neighbor #4: And if you go up six more feet?

Mr. Minuta: We are not going up six more feet.

Neighbor #4: Your not going to?

Mr. Minuta: It’s an elevation issue. I just don’t know how to explain it.

Neighbor #4: All right, that’s what I was asking.

Mr. Mc Kelvey: I think you are trying to say you are going up six feet.

Mr. Minuta: Above the existing home, above the existing ridge and really that’s what, I’m sorry …

Mr. Mc Kelvey: Are you trying to say when you get the six feet on there you are now going to be nine feet about the road?

Mr. Minuta: Thank you. So this is our application. We can go around this another month; I don’t know that much else is going to change. There’s only so much we can work with, with this property. And I think we have tried to meet everybody’s needs. I even left this open, to an open discussion for the design of my client’s home. His own private residence. So there we are.

Chairperson Cardone: Mister…

Neighbor #7: My name is Neighbor #7, I live at _______ St. I grew up on Mace Circle. My mother’s house, I read the letter last month. What I would like to do is offer to grab your car tonight and have you come over and talk to the neighbors just so that everyone understands. I grew up on the lake; I knew it when it was a cottage. I worked underneath with Neighbor #1 and Neighbor #8, and I just don’t understand how you can maintain a crawl space and add a whole other floor and only add 6’8” to the total height of the building. Unless you are changing the roofline. And you know, I remember bumping my head coming up the steps to the second floor to begin with and I just cant understand how you are going to add a whole other floor and only add 6’8”. But I guess what I would like to do is, propose that if the whole neighborhood comes to my house and sits down and goes through the plans I would love to have everyone understand what’s going on so when we come before the board we can all stand up and say, “yup, we have reviewed it and we are all in agreement with what your proposing to do.”

Chairperson Cardone: Isn’t that the point of the Civic Association?

Neighbor #7: Well I don’t think

Chairperson Cardone: Am I wrong? Can anybody answer that question?

Mr. Gesmundo: My name is Michael Gesmundo; my name is in the book by the way Mr. Minuta. Very easy to find. 

Mr. Minuta: Thank You. I appreciate that.

Mr. Gesmundo: You are quite welcome. And I am more than willing to speak to you to. But that’s not our function. Our function over the years is to protect the lake. It always has been. We have been very heavily involved in protecting and establishing new rules and new laws with the Town to protect the homeowners, potential new builders, potential, ya know I think its wonderful Mr. Shapiro wants to build a new home. I also respect the existing homeowners and what they have. And one of the things that we’ve done probably in the last three years, working four years, is one of the issues some of the Laws we put into effect with the Town, and the Town has recognized them. One of them is big, is the views. And that is our purpose. Our purpose is not to take sides with one another. It’s just to enforce and protect mainly the lake and the homeowners there and the issues. If they would come to us or builders, architects, engineers, and ask us what the existing Law is prior to doing something then we can probably assist them going forward but we’re not, that’s not our function. But we would be happy, more than sympathy homeowners at any time. Does that answer your question? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes and I understood the Association to be that, to serve in that function. 

Mr. Gesmundo: That’s correct.

Mr. Mc Kelvey: I remember when Mr. Coppola went to the Board with a final proposal and got it passed.

Mr. Gesmundo: That is correct. Jay our Vice President, and has a very good working relationship, I think, with all the Boards and that’s what we really want.

Chairperson Cardone: There is a lady over here who would like to speak.

Neighbor #4: Hi I am Neighbor #4, I live with him. I just have, my concern while I am here supporting Neighbor #6 also, but also about setting precedent. We mentioned Neighbor #5’s house. We live, we have a view of the lake and we can see over the house, right now. We are on.

Mr. Minuta: (inaudible) I would be happy to go to your house

Neighbor #4: You are welcome to come over. And we can see over, but my concern is precedence, we didn’t get a letter by the way. His mom got a letter who lives across the lake, across the cove, but we didn’t get a letter, which we’re down the road and I don’t know why but is it, maybe we are passed that mark, but we can’t see, and my concern is precedent in that there are a lot of those houses right across the thing and if we start setting, I don’t know if this Board if its by setting precedent, like if you give the variance to this person then your going to give it to the next person and the next person and the next person kind of thing. That’s my concern, one of my concerns too because right now I do have a view of the lake and if that were to happen I wouldn’t. 

Chairperson Cardone: Each application is considered on its merit.

Neighbor #4: Independently without… ..there’s really not precedence that in the. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right

Neighbor #4: Ok thank you.

Mr. J. Shapiro: You don’t live on the lake correct?

Neighbor #4: No we are across the street, but I have views.

Mr. J. Shapiro: So if you lived on the lake that would give you a better view of the water? Thank you.

Mr. Minuta: I will state I am sorry you were not notified, we were provided the certified letters, the certified addresses, that’s all part of the public record. If you weren’t on that you were outside the Zone of people being notified. That’s pretty simple. 

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Mattina do you have any comment to make as far as the plan. Are you familiar with the plan without that room? 

Mr. Mattina: No, as far as the new plan. Yea the only plan’s I am familiar with are the original one submitted. And like I said the rear sunroom, all that violates the rear yard setback. To go ahead and remove it, move the deck and everything build a house in the same footprint and that does away with the rear yard setback.

Mr. Canfield: Lot coverage.

Mr. Mattina: Right, well lot coverage is maintained the same exact building. 

Mr. Canfield: Right so that would eliminate the issue of lot coverage. 

Mr. Mattina: Right that would get rid of your lot coverage issue if you removed the decks and the room.

Mr. Minuta: Actually lot coverage is only based on the permeable area. 

Mr. Mattina: Right so removal of that room is going to help you in that aspect too. 

Mr. Minuta: Yes yes.

Mr. Canfield: Two variances. Correct?

Mr. Mattina: Right if you …

Mr. Minuta: Well …

Mr. Canfield: As they interpret it that’s why you are here.

Mr. Minuta: As our understanding is yes, technically we still have to meet the (inaudible)

So those variances are still required. We don’t eliminate any by removing the room. We still have an eight-foot set back from the property line.

Mr. Canfield: In our eyes you do.

Mr. Minuta: Thank You.

Mr. Canfield: Trying to help you here.

Mr. Minuta: I appreciate that.

Chairperson Cardone: If I could ask, in you know, in the interest of time we as Mr. Hughes said, we spent a lot of time last month and this month on this particular issue and its necessary. It’s necessary because we want to have the applicant be able to present his part, and also the neighbors to present theirs. But there’s also the issue of the Building Department because we need to heart what they have to offer us. I would suggest that we hold this open and that we, that you re-submit the plan to the Building Department and that they re-submit to us this form, right here, making it very clear because there was some discrepancy about some of the figures here with what you thought they were and what the Building Department said they were. And if we could have something that states the same thing states what you say it is and what you think it is and the figures are the same. And if we could have that before us next month it would make it easier for all of us to see exactly what we are talking about and to reach and intelligent decision.

Ms. Drake: Does that include the plans to all of us? 

Mr. Hughes: We should receive a copy of what the Building Department is going to get as well. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mrs. Drake: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: Also if I may suggest I have heard of a technique, and Mr. Minuta may be aware of it, I believe its called balloon testing. You are looking for aesthetic visuals, with respect to elevations; it may assist in the question as far as what view sheds will be affected. Mr. Manley had raised a question about the difficulty how it will look to picture a 25/30-foot building. This technique may assist the applicant and Mr. Minuta as far as establishing a good clear visual of what you may be looking to expect with what your design is. I don’t mean to spend the applicant’s money however it is an option that’s out there. 

Mr. Minuta: Thank you for that. A balloon float is typically don’t for towers, cell towers, etc…I have done them myself. I can stand down here and put my arm up and tell you how high it is going to be. That’s how large this is. We have sketched some things in. I am trained in perspective. I am trained in these visuals. This is what I do for a living. This is my training. I will be happy to do a balloon float if it so pleases my client. If not, we can provide as I provided here, so mock-ups of the existing photographs of what that would be. And again we are raising six feet and to answer your question, the difference is roof pitch. The roof pitch of the existing verses the roof pitch of the new. We made a flatter roof rather than its pitch now. So that’s why we have the discrepancy in height there.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Minuta

Mr. Minuta: Yes sir.

Mr. Hughes: May I suggest if its possible on the roof as it exists could you make a tripod of something that would put a six foot top there that would make neighbors can see on both corners? 

Mr. Minuta: Six foot ten, be happy to do it. 

Mr. Hughes: It’s better than a balloon and all that stuff.

Mr. Minuta: It really is.

Chairperson Cardone: But don’t do it tomorrow.

Mr. Hughes: But if you would construct a your six foot thing and everybody in the neighborhood will be able to see what’s going to be blocked out by that extension.

Mr. Minuta: Fair enough. And with respect to that I also want to state that the gable of the roof is changing its position, so the wedge is toward you rather than to the flat so that completely alters your perspective as well.

Neighbor #8: My name is Neighbor #8. So what your saying is you’re raising the center of the roof but your lowering the sides of the roof by switching the gables. How much are you lowering the sides?

Mr. Minuta: This is the existing street elevation, pitching this way. The new elevation pitches this way. The eaves should line up. Let’s take a scale.

Neighbor #8: Don’t ask me to read it because I don’t know what it is.

Mr. Minuta: That’s ok. The eave is approximately at this location. 

Neighbor #8: So you are lowering it. 

Mr. Minuta: Your not really changing much there. 

Neighbor #8: Ok.

Mr. Minuta: Ok, we are simply going to face that way instead of the other way.

Neighbor #8: Ok.

Mr. Minuta: Ok.

Neighbor #8: Thank you sir.

Mr. Minuta: Yes: 

Neighbor #6: If the new plans are submitted will the public have access to view them?

Mr. J. Shapiro: Neighbor #6, if you want to see the new plans I’ll call you when they are done. How about that?

Neighbor #6: But you said that before, and you never brought them over, three times. And then when I tried to talk to you.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Minuta. Mr. Minuta will answer you.

Neighbor #6: I was asking the Board

Mr. Minuta: If I may, this is a matter of Public Record. Everybody has access to these. It’s called a Foil Request. If not I will be happy to open my office to you, come to my office; you can view the plans there. All right, I have a plan table you car review them. And one more thing please, going forward, happy to work with everybody here, truly, but we do need to establish some sort or parameters of understanding so that when applicants come in under this premise, they need to know the process. We are not just working with the Board here. The standard governmental process is to work with the Board. There needs to be something in the forefront so that the applicants who come forward in the future know to work with Associations and not be forthright and out front, not come to a meeting and find out afterward. And if I …

Chairperson Cardone: Its not required that you, it’s not on our part any way, its not required that you work with the Association. However I personally think it’s a good idea because they can offer lot of suggestions, because they have been on the lake for quite awhile, and you get a lot of different input from a lot of different people who have experience with the building. I just think it’s a good idea.

Mr. Minuta: Excellent.

Chairperson Cardone: I’m not saying it’s a requirement.

Mr. Minuta: I understood that it’s not a requirement in the effort of good faith, Mr. Gesmundo, may I have your phone number please sir? Excellent. Thank you so much.

Mr. Manley: I have a question. Mr. Canfield you had mentioned that if there were some modifications made to the structure you may be able to eliminate two of the requested variances? Were you?

Mr. Canfield: As I understood what was to happen, in the elimination of three season room, that’s what it was called a three season room, so you would eliminate potentially the rear yard variance request and I believe without seeing the actual calculations in sizes but the lot coverage, ok? That’s what I was referring to.

Mr. Manley: Well if there’s a way that you can eliminate variances and not have so many that obviously helps your case, and makes your case more palatable for at least from my respect. So I would encourage you, before you re-tool those plans maybe meet with Mr. Canfield to see what potentially you could change. The other situation is maybe, and I don’t know how the rest of the Board feels but if you need to maybe move things on either side, increasing the footprint, if it prevents you from maybe having to go up and block views, that may be something that I would look into if that made the public happy, if that made the neighbors happy. That may be something to look at but again like the Chair said, I am one of seven, and everybody has their own thoughts as to how this thing should go but I think you benefit from speaking with Mr. Canfield.

Mr. Minuta: Absolutely. I work with Mr. Canfield, on many different projects. With regard to that we have done what we can with regard to the footprint. We have done what we can with regard to the setbacks. If we come any closer we are going to come into fire issues and correct me if appropriate, we start encroaching closer and closer to the property line and now we deal with fire issues and god forbid there is a fire that goes to another neighbors house and these are the things, this is why you have a minimum of a ten foot set back. With regard to these variances, as I stated before, the house as it is without the decks, without a three season room, still requires all nine variances. There’s no way to not get a variance for all nine because the existing house is doing the same thing. That’s why when I opened up ...

Mr. Canfield: That’s not true

Mr. Minuta: Explain to me please. What is the rear yard requirement? The rear yard requirement for this Zone is 40 ft. 

Mr. Mattina: When your non-existent building so the only thing you would be really going for is increasing the height. If your not altering the rear lot line it’s not going to make a difference.

Mr. Minuta: So we are categorizing that as existing non-conformance, and that’s it.

Mr. Canfield: Exactly. That’s the whole issue.

Mr. Minuta: Then the whole thing needs to be re-written, as far as what the variances are period. 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s why I suggested that you, because that has been the issue …

Mr. Minuta: Ok we will rework it. I will re-tool with Mr. Canfield and I do appreciate. I don’t know how much more is left of this. I think we are all getting tired.

Mr. Hughes: One other issue.

Me. Minuta: Sir. 

Mr. Hughes: Going up is a furtherance of non-conformity as well. Keep that in mind. 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s what he’s saying.

Mr. Mattina: That one he is not getting around. 

Mr. Minuta: Agreed. We are going to request one hopefully at that point.

Mr. Hughes: I just don’t want you to overlook that, that is existing there and its there. 

Mr. Minuta: Thank You.

Neighbor #6: That was the only reason I had asked if we were going to see plans because I thought the variances were going to change and we had originally gotten a letter, the variances where you had public access to the plans. So I was just wondering it that would happen before the next Meeting again.

Chairperson Cardone: If you go to the Building Inspector’s Office. 

Neighbor #6: Ok.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s the Building right in back of this one.

Neighbor #6: Ok. And then my other question was, I would be more than happy to have Mr. Minuta do whatever view, I didn’t do it before because I felt uncomfortable with somebody potentially has a monetary benefit from showing that my views aren’t blocked doing it. I’d be happy to hire someone else. I will do whatever the Board would like to me to do. 

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Shapiro. Excuse me. Mr. Shapiro

Mr. G. Shapiro: I am willing to use Neighbor #8 as my liaison to this group right here so I will get, we will revise the plans. I will give them to Neighbor #8 and then he can set up whatever kind of meetings he needs to and get. I am going to leave that communication between me and Neighbor #8.

Chairperson Cardone: Ok, thank you.

Neighbor #8: There is tension between Glen and the others so, I offered that Glen get the plans made up, give them to me and I will hand them out. And then there is no, avoid anymore future tension, who’s avoiding who, if that would help.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank You.

Mr. Mc Kelvey: I think the homeowners would understand better then too. And I think they are entitled to understand. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anyone else? Neighbor #1?

Neighbor #1: Are we going to see what is going to be the final plan this time?

Mr. Minuta: You, yes, to answer your question, yes

Chairperson Cardone: And when would they be available in the Building Inspector’s Office? We would need to know that.

Mr. Minuta: I will try to make them available to your Office next week, if not sooner.

Mr. Hughes: Monday?

Mr. Minuta: You want me to work the weekend don’t ya?

Mr. Hughes: Wednesday, I don’t know, you tell us. The reason I say that is if they go into do the Foil, Foil can take ten days and then the clock is running here.

Chairperson Cardone: No they are not doing Foil, they are just going into the Building Inspector’s Office and they are going to look at the plans.

Ms. Gennarelli: They can come in and look at the files. The files are open to the public.

Mr. Minuta: For your convenience, please give me till at least Thursday of next week before you go to the Building Department. I will get them in before Thursday. Ok?

Chairperson Cardone: Ten days will be reasonable?

Mr. Minuta: Ten days is more than reasonable, but now we are getting into time frames and you may not be able to address the issues before the next meeting. 

Chairperson Cardone: We are going to leave this part of the Hearing open until next month at that time; I hope Mr. Canfield and Mr. Mattina you will be able to be here also. Thank You.

Mr. Minuta: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 10:30 PM)








(Time Noted – 10:30 P.M.)
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 (Letter dated December 18, 2006 from Stephen Gaba concerning Decision of September 25, 2006 granting the variances and Interpretation of the 6 month period for construction.)                                                               

VARIANCE:  FOR SETBACKS TO REPLACE A MOBILE HOME WITH A LARGER ONE; 40’ FROM OTHER MOBILE HOMES, 25’ FROM PAVEMENT EDGE, 15’ FROM PROPERTY LINE. ENLARGING A NON-CONFORMING USE  

Chairperson Cardone: We have a couple of other items that were not listed on the Agenda, but we need to address. And, before we meet with our attorney, I would just like to mention what those items are. One is a letter that we have received from Mr. Gaba concerning the application of Candlestick Association and asking for an interpretation of the variance that we granted at that time. I don’t know if the Board would like to discuss that at this time.

Mr. Hughes: We could discuss it now.

Mr. McKelvey: We could do that.

Chairperson Cardone: If you recall Candlestick Park came before us, Candlestick Association and they required a number of variances for a number units that they were replacing and I think everybody has the letter from Mr. Gaba. 

Candlestick requested the ZBA directed that a site plan showing the newly approved setbacks for the homes in the park be attached to the ZBA’s resolution and that both the resolution and the plan be filed with the Building Inspector’s Office. That way, when a building permit is sought for the park, the Town Building Inspector can easily determine whether a proposed home complies with the building size and location approved by the ZBA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Building Inspector’s Office has raised the question of how Town Code 185-55 (D) applies to the variance granted to Candlestick. Town Code 185-55(D) states: 

Unless construction is commenced and diligently prosecuted with six months of the granting of a variance or special permit, such variance or special permit shall become null and void. The six-month period may be extended by the Board for one additional six-month period.

If the variance granted by the ZBA is viewed ad multiple variances for multiple homes, then the variances for homes for which no building permit have been obtained within six months will expire and Candlestick will have to return to the ZBA seeking renewal or a new grant of the variances every time it is ready to replace one of the homes for which the ZBA has now granted a variance. If, on the other hand, the ZBA intended to grant a single variance covering the entire property then Candlestick’s right to locate all of the homes in the park as per the variance vests upon granting of the first building permit and there is no need for Candlestick to return to the ZBA every time it applies for a building permit. At the suggestion of the Town Attorney we are writing to request that the ZBA confirm our understanding that the ZBA intended to grant a single variance covering the entire property.

Mr. Hughes: And, that we did.

Mr. McKelvey: That we did, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: It is my feeling that that is exactly what we did.

Mr. Hughes: If you recall, we discussed it at length about the possibility of having to come back and the expirations and then we thought by passing them all as one that it would eliminate the possibility of flooding this Board again and again. I think they had something like 28 variances.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. I would then, if it’s the pleasure of the rest of the Members of the Board, request that our Attorney write a letter to Mr. Gaba.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Mr. Manley: Just for discussion, Jerry (Canfield) were there any concerns behind that or just …? There were concerns?

Mr. Canfield: Oh no, the only concern that we had was because of the nature of what’s (inaudible) and what Mr. Warner, the owner of the park, would like to do. This build-out in changing out these units could take up to 5 years to do, O.K., so; basically historically we looked at the 6-month window. This is a unique variance in this respect. 

Chairperson Cardone: It was.

Ms. Martini: It was unique.

Mr. Canfield: It’s something that would be doable over a duration of 3 – 5 years, however long it took him to change out the units. So, that’s why we requested the clarification.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, I think we did blanket it though.

Mr. Canfield: O.K.

Ms. Martini: For this particular circumstance.

Mr. Canfield: As long as we know.

Ms. Martini: We did know it would take that long. 

Chairperson Cardone: It was a unique application.

Mr. Hughes: We did blanket it, but we did wring him out too because we involved the Fire Commissioner in that area because of some of the requests in the roadways and it’s quite tight there to begin with and everybody across the Board, School Authorities were notified. So, we had a lot of information about what it may do and there were no backlashes that we could detect except for that pile up. 

Mr. Canfield: The only consideration we had was the duration that it stood for, that was it.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And, it had to be exactly as they submitted it to us with the plans that they submitted …

Ms. Martini: Attached.

Mr. Manley: They submitted, they attached plans; they showed exactly how it was going to appear.

Mr. Canfield: We have that.

Mr. Manley: So, if it deviated from that they are going to have to come back.

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: There were projections of building envelopes on each lot.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, we have that.

Mr. Manley: And, I think we also discussed having to get into compliance any sheds?

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, I was going to say if they …

Mr. Hughes: And, parking.

Mr. Manley: When they do go ahead and replace the unit if there are sheds on there, that shouldn’t be on there, that all gets addressed then and there. 

Mr. Canfield: Right, very good.

Chairperson Cardone: We have a motion and a second that that was the understanding of the Board?

Ms. Gennarelli: Who was the motion?

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Hughes, Mr. McKelvey second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. we’ll do a roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes  

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with Counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. I would asking in the interest of time if the public would step out into the hallway and we’ll call you in shortly. 

(Time Noted – 10:37 P.M.)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 25, 2007

END OF MEETING 
                                            (Time Noted –  11:29 PM)



Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has a copy of the minutes had a chance to look at the minutes from last month. Are there any additions, deletions, corrections? 

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, I had one correction; I forgot which sheet it was on. It’s on the one up on Rathmore Road, in a statement I made …

Chairperson Cardone: The McLaughlin.

Mr. McKelvey: The McLaughlin, it said … really going to see from the road and it should have been it’s not really going to be seen from the road.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve the minutes as corrected?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve the minutes as corrected.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

ROBERT KUNKEL

REORGANIZATION MEETING

Chairperson Cardone: We are going to have a Reorganization Meeting, accepting nominations for Chairperson and Vice Chairperson.

Ms. Eaton: I make a motion to nominate Grace Cardone as our Chairperson.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: We will do a roll call vote:

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Abstain

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: And, do I have a nomination for Vice Chairperson?

Ms. Eaton: I nominate John McKelvey.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call:

John McKelvey: Abstain

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any other business? 

Mr. Hughes: I would like to know if the Building Department has money in their budget to attend our meetings so a Representative is here. I think it’s very important. We are without Consultants like the Planning Board has. They have (9) nine of them sitting at the table. We are here all by ourselves with you guys it’s tough going. So, if you don’t have it in your budget ...

Chairperson Cardone: It’s a big help to us when you’re here.

Mr. McKelvey: It is.

Mr. Hughes: It’s a tremendous amount, because if nothing else, the people can hear it for themselves as why we interact the way we do and it eliminates a lot of non-sense. So, if there is anyway you can push for that in the budget and if there’s anyway you could push for us to have some Consultants.

Chairperson Cardone: I believe the request that to our Liaison to the Town Board that they do whatever they need to do to enable the Building Department to be here representing them, we’ve been asking them for a couple of years.

Mr. Canfield: (inaudible)We’re facilitating it. We’re budgeting it. (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Good.

Mr. McKelvey: It’s a great help, it really is.

Mr. Hughes: Just the confidence that it instills in the public that we’re speaking to each other and that you are here to comment because you guys have a ton of experience and your in that book all the time and we’re not. It’s a lot to cover.

Mr. Manley: When you speak it also representing the Town’s position.

Chairperson Cardone: Just one other thing, I mentioned the Conference last time and so far Ron is the only one who has said he is interested in attending.

Mr. Hughes: That’s the March 8th or the Town?

Chairperson Cardone: It’s in March.

Ms. Drake: Do we know what the date is?

Mr. Hughes: March 8th.

Ms. Eaton: What is that for, Grace? 

Chairperson Cardone: It’s in Poughkeepsie and it’s on Zoning, if you don’t have a flyer on it, we can get you a copy. I think everybody had it in their packet.

Mr. Manley: Also, there is the Association of Towns to, if anybody is going.

Chairperson Cardone: They need to put in the paperwork on that, but as I mentioned, I think I mentioned it last month, what’s in the budget doesn’t enable one person to go both the Association of Towns and the New York Federation.

Mr. Hughes: That’s in Saratoga Springs?

Chairperson Cardone: The one that’s in Saratoga, so you really have to make a choice. I made a choice to go to Saratoga because I think it’s better.

Mr. McKelvey: But, it is a better conference there.

Chairperson Cardone: I think it’s the 9th of October or something like that.

Mr. Canfield: Ron had mentioned the costs, there is a section in Fees, Chapter 104, which dictates Zoning Board and Building and everybody’s Fees in the Town of Newburgh. There is a line in there you may want to look at because, and I think it’s a recent change, 2005, 2006 where it does state that under Zoning Board Fees if you feel that you need to charge an applicant for additional …

Mr. Hughes: …special advice …

Mr. Canfield: …special advice, like a Consultant or a expert advice in Engineering, something. The provisions are there.

Chairperson Cardone: But, I think they did put that in in 2005.

Mr. Canfield: Right. So, just to give you something to look at.

Mr. Hughes: Grace, a request for a copy of this book (“Well Grounded”) for every Board Member. 

Chairperson Cardone: Did you write it?

Mr. Hughes: No, I didn’t but I know the guy that did. This is Professor Nolan, Pace University is the Land Law Use University and John Nolan and his son Sean and Tiffany Zezula wrote this book and rewrote it. They were commissioned by the State of New York. It’s very simple, you open the thing and you look for what you’re looking for and it brings you right to.

Chairperson Cardone: How much does it cost?

Mr. Hughes: I paid $25 for it, I think.

Mr. Manley: Barnes & Noble?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I can give you the ISBN number from Congress. It’s $29.95; it might be a little bit more now. But you can call 914 422-4168 and speak right to the Law Center and the ISBN number for Congress, in the Library of Congress is 0-9668221-0-2 and it was copywrited by the Land Use Law Center, Pace University, in White Plains. They are available on the phone and in the front and the back of the book (“Well Grounded”) you will see all of the books that were published by Pace, that is not only interesting reading but pertinent to what the work that we have in front of us. Everything you need to know about Zoning is right in that book right there.

Mr. McKelvey: I would think they were going to improve the (inaudible) recording system and a second mic.

Chairperson Cardone: And, a second mic. Right. George told us that.

Mr. McKelvey: Everybody, they are going to have a permanent recorder in here.

Chairperson Cardone: They will have that mic and then another mic so that the presenter will have a mic and the public will have a mic. So, we don’t have to be passing the mic back and forth.

Ms. Eaton: Good idea.

Ms. Drake: And, I want to commend for Betty for the work that she did, being she wasn’t last month and getting the minutes, if there was only one correction - that was amazing.

Chairperson Cardone: That was incredible.

Ms. Drake: Very good job.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to commend Betty for her work as well because where we were and where we are now, Wow!

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: And, I’d like to wish you luck with this one, being up so late.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. Thank you. Close the meeting?

Chairperson Cardone: The meeting is closed until next month.    

(Time Noted – 11:45)

